
BOROUGH OF BARROW-IN-FURNESS 
 

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
 

 Meeting: Thursday, 20th October, 2022 
     at 2.00 pm (Committee Room No.4) 

 
 

A G E N D A 
PART ONE 
 

1.   Apologies for Absence/Attendance of Substitute Members   
 

 

2.   Urgent Items 
 
To deal with any items which the Chair considers to be of an urgent 
nature.  
 

 

3.   Delegations 
 
To receive notice from Members who may wish to move any 
delegated matter non-delegated and which will be decided by a 
majority of Members present and voting at the meeting. 
 

 

4.   Admission of Public and Press 
 
To consider whether the public and press should be excluded from 
the meeting during consideration of any of the items on the agenda. 
 

 

5.   Declarations of Interest 
 
To receive declarations by Members and/or co-optees of interests in 
respect of items on this Agenda.  
 
Members are reminded that, in accordance with the revised Code of 
Conduct, they are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary 
interests or other registrable interests which have not already been 
declared in the Council’s Register of Interests.  (It is a criminal 
offence not to declare a disclosable pecuniary interest either in the 
Register or at the meeting). 
 
Members may however, also decide, in the interests of clarity and 
transparency, to declare at this point in the meeting, any such 
disclosable pecuniary interests which they have already declared in 
the Register,  as well as any other registrable or other interests.   
 

 

6.   Minutes 
 
To confirm the Minutes of the meeting held on 28th July, 2022. 
 
 

5 - 14 



 

7.   Public Participation 
 
Any member of the public who wishes to ask a question, make 
representations or present a deputation or petition at this meeting 
should apply to do so by no later than 5pm two working days before 
the meeting.  Information on how to make the application can be 
obtained by viewing the Council’s website www.barrowbc.gov.uk or 
by contacting the Democratic Services Team at 
ctteadmin@barrowbc.gov.uk or by telephone on 01229 876314. 
 
(1) Questions and Representations 

To receive any questions or representations which have been 
received from Members of the public. 

 
(2) Deputations and Petitions 

To receive any deputations or petitions which have been received 
from members of the public. 

 
 

 

FOR DECISION  
 

 

(D) 8.   Annual Audit and Statutory Recommendation Reports   
 
To Receive the Auditor’s Annual Report and Statutory 
Recommendations Report and raise any questions. 
 

15 - 68 

(D) 9.   Audit and Governance Improvement Plan and Draft Annual 
Governance Statement   
 
To note and provide feedback on the combined Audit and 
Governance Improvement Plan; and 
 
To consider the draft Annual Governance Statement and provide 
feedback; and  
 
Review arrangements and escalation controls and agree the 
proposals as set out in paragraph 3.4 for future reporting. 
 

69 - 106 

(D) 10.   Work Plan 2022-2023   
 
To Note the Work Plan for 2022-2023.  
 

107 - 116 

(D) 11.   Borough and Parish/Town Councillor Registers of DIsclosable 
Pecuniary Interests and Other Registrable Interests   
 
To note the review of the register of interests. 
 

117 - 120 

(D) 12.   Employee Register of Gifts and Hospitality   
 
To Note the Report  
 

121 - 122 

(D) 13.   Report on Compliments, Customer Feedback and Complaints 123 - 132 

http://www.barrowbc.gov.uk/
mailto:ctteadmin@barrowbc.gov.uk


 

received during 2021/22   
 
To receive and note the report  
 

(D) 14.   Local Government Ombudsman Annual Report 2021/22   
 
To receive and note the report  
 

133 - 140 

(D) 15.   Risk Management   
 
To note the update in respect of the Council’s risk management 
arrangements. 
 

141 - 150 

(D) 16.   Internal Audit Final Report   
 
To note the Internal Audit final report. 
 

151 - 156 

(D) 17.   Internal Audit Progress Report   
 
To note the Internal Audit progress report. 
 

157 - 174 

NOTE  (D) – Delegated 
  (R) – For Referral to Council 
 
Membership of Committee 
Councillors 
 
Councillors Burns (Chairman) 

Assouad (Vice-Chair) 
Callister 
D. Edwards 
Mcleavy 
Nott 
 

 
For queries regarding this agenda, please contact: 
 Katie Pepper 

Democratic Services 
Officer 
01229 876314 
kpepper@barrowbc.gov.uk 

 
Published: Wednesday, 12 October 2022 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



BARROW BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
 

Meeting Thursday 28th July, 2022 
at 2.00 pm. (Banqueting Hall) 

 
PRESENT:- Councillors Burns (Chair), Assouad, D. Edwards, McLeavy and Nott 
 

Officers Present:- Debbie Storr (Head of Legal and Governance & Monitoring Officer), 
Sandra Baines (Head of Visitor Economy and Culture), Chris Butler (Financial Services 
Manager), Les Davies (Head of Asset Management) , Keith Jackson (Head of Internal 
Audit), Chris Jones (Head of Programme Management and Climate Change), Jamie 
Muir (Procurement Officer) and Katie Pepper (Democratic and Electoral Services 
Officer). 
 

Also present:- Matt Derrick and Gareth Kelly from Grant Thornton. 
 
1 – Apologies for Absence 
 

An apology for absence had been received from Councillor Callister. 
 
2 – Minutes 
 

The Minutes of the meeting held on 27th April, 2022 were taken as read and confirmed. 
 
3 – Public Participation 
 

RESOLVED:- To note that no questions, representations, deputations or petitions had 
been received in respect of the meeting. 
 
4 – Terms of Reference 
 

The Head of Legal and Governance & Monitoring Officer reported that the Terms of 
Reference were set out in the Council’s Constitution and were attached as an appendix 
to the report. They were reported to provide Members with the framework of the 
Committee’s business. 
 

RESOLVED:- To note the Terms of Reference for the Audit and Governance 
Committee. 
 
5 – Work Plan 2022-2023 
 

The Head of Legal and Governance & Monitoring Officer reported that the work plan 
sets out the business of the Audit and Governance Committee to provide a forward 
plan and to demonstrate that the terms of reference were covered. 
 

The work plan was presented to each Audit and Governance Committee meeting to 
provide a forward plan of business. 
 

The work plan was intended to demonstrate that the terms of reference were covered.  

Page 5

Agenda Item 6



 

There were several items  highlighted in the report as this was the final Work Plan prior 
to unitisation.  
 

The work plan had been attached as an appendix to the report. 
 

RESOLVED:- To note the Work Plan for 2022-2023. 
 

6 – Audit Progress Report and Sector Update  
 

The External Auditors had produced a Progress Report and Sector Update report to 
Members.  The report provided the Committee with details of the Auditors progress in 
delivering their responsibilities as External Auditors.  This also included a summary 
of emerging national issues and developments that may be relevant to the Council as 
well as a number of challenge questions in respect of those emerging issues which 
the Committee may wish to consider. 
 

The Auditors confirmed that they were still considering whether they needed to 
exercise any of their additional statutory powers or duties, under the Local Audit and 
Accountability Act 2014, in respect of 2020/21 and a final decision on that was 
currently under consideration. 
 

A table of progress as at July 2022 had been presented as follows:- 
 
 

2021/22 Deliverables  Planned Date        Status 

 

Audit Plan 
 

We are required to issue a detailed accounts audit plan to the August/ September     Not Yet Due 
Audit Committee setting out our proposed approach in order     2022 
to give an opinion on the Council’s 2021-22 financial statements 
and the Auditors Annual Report on the Council’s Value for 
Money arrangements . 
 

Interim Audit Findings  
 

We will report to you the findings from our interim audit and  
Our initial value for money risk assessment within our Progress        September 2022 Not Yet Due 
Report. 
 

Audit Findings Report 
 

The Audit Findings Report would be reported to the September       December 2022 Not Yet Due 
Audit Committee. 
 

Auditors Report  
 

This includes the opinion on your financial statements.             December 2022 Not Yet Due 
 

Auditor’s Annual Report  
 

This report communicates the key issues arising from our                  December 2022      Not Yet Due 
Value for Money work. 

Page 6

Agenda Item 6



 
RESOLVED:- To receive the External Auditor’s report. 
 
7 – Internal Audit Final Reports and Internal Audit Progress Report 
 
The Head of Internal Audit reported that Internal Audit performed audits in 
accordance with the approved Annual Plan which was based on a risk assessment of 
the internal control environment. 
 
The report presented the Internal Audit final reports completed since the last meeting 
of the Committee. There had been seven final reports appended for presentation:- 
 
CR141 Housing 2019-23 Staircase Cleaning – Restricted Assurance. The report 
contained three major issues and four important issues. 
 
21-17 Procurement – No Assurance. The report contained three important issues 
and five previous recommendations.  
 
21-11 Treasury Management – Substantial Assurance. The report contained three 
important issues and five previous recommendations.  
 
21-09 Performance Management – Restricted Assurance. The report contained five 
major issues and four important issues. 
 
CR133 Insurance – Restricted Assurance. The report contained two major issues 
and five important issues.  
 
CR136 Catering and Cleaning at the Forum and Dock Museum 2021-26 – No 
Assurance. This report contained six major issues and four important issues.  
 
CR120 Cleaning of Barrow Town Hall and Associated Buildings 2021-23 – No 
Assurance. This report contained seven major issues and five important issues.  
 
The Internal Audit progress report for the period 1st April 2022 to 19th July 2022 was 
attached as an Appendix to the report.  
 
The Head of Visitor Economy and Culture attended the committee to provide 
information on the Cleaning and Catering at the Forum and Dock Museum. She 
informed the Committee that she was now responsible for management of the 
contract and they held weekly, monthly and quarterly meeting with the management.  
 
The Head of Asset Management attended the committee to provide information on 
the Housing 2019-23 Staircase cleaning. He informed the Committee that new 
procurement rules had been introduced and contract monitoring procedures were in 
place.  
 
Jamie Muir (Procurement Officer) attended the committee to provide information on 
Procurement. He informed the Committee of the recent procurement review and they 
had a new procurement handbook. The Committee were also informed that procuring 
staff had undergone training. 

Page 7

Agenda Item 6



 
The Head of Legal and Governance acknowledged the auditor concerns, and those 
from previous audits which Management Team had acknowledged and had taken 
steps to address these.  The Management Responses were attached to the reports 
in the papers for members.  Whilst acknowledging that the new procedures had yet 
to be tested through audit reviews, it was hoped improvements would be seen 
through these processes. 
 
Members asked questions of officers, and it was confirmed that an action plan was in 
the process of being developed which would cover action to address outstanding 
recommendations.  The actions would also be referenced through the Annual 
Governance Statement. 
 
RESOLVED:-  
 

1. To note the Internal Audit final reports; and  
 

2. To note the Internal Audit Progress report 
 

8 – Internal Audit Annual Report 
 
The Head of Internal Audit presented the Internal Audit Annual Report for 2020-2021 
to the Committee.  He explained that the purpose of the Annual Report was to meet 
the Head of Internal Audit’s annual reporting requirements set out in the Public 
Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). The Head of Internal Audit’s formal annual 
report presented an opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the internal 
control environment, and:- 
 
a) Included an opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the 

organisation’s framework of governance, risk management and control, 
however it should be noted that as a result of the Coronavirus pandemic the 
delivery of the Council’s Internal Audit plan had been severely restricted. This 
report had been compiled in the required format; 

 
b) Disclosed any qualifications to that opinion, together with the reasons for the 

qualification, including impairment or restriction in scope; 
 
c) Presented a summary of the audit work undertaken to formulate the opinion, 

including reliance placed on work by other assurance bodies; 
 
d) Drawn attention to any issues the Head of Internal Audit judges particularly 

relevant to the preparation of the Annual Governance Statement; 
 
e) Compared the work actually undertaken with the work that was planned; and 
 
f) Commented on compliance with these standards and the Internal Audit quality 

assurance programme. 
 

Page 8

Agenda Item 6



The opinion was that the Annual Report provided limited assurance that the 
organisation’s framework of governance, transparency, risk management and control 
operated satisfactorily during 2021/22. 
 
The detailed opinion was that, for the systems reviewed, the Council had a number 
of basically sound systems of control in place, although there were certain significant 
weaknesses which put some of the system objectives at risk, these mainly related to 
areas of contract management and control, leases, procurement and specific 
individual systems as reported. 
 
Areas where only Restricted Assurance could be provided, related to the following 
reports: 
 

 Recruitment; 

 Accounts Receivable; 

 Covid Risk Assessment – Post Assurance Report; 
 Performance Management; 

 Insurance; and 

 Housing – Staircase cleaning. 
 
Of more concern there were also areas where No Assurance had been provided, 
these related to: 

 Procurement; 

 Forum Catering and Cleaning; and 

 Cleaning of Barrow Town Hall and Associated Buildings 2021-23. 
 
In addition, there were five areas where No Assurance had been assigned to initial 
draft reports, due to the lack of information provided and potential non-compliance 
(varying levels of information had been provided since the issue of these reports, 
which would be audited within the 2022/23 plan): 
 
Weaknesses found as a result of the work, together with recommendations for 
improvement, had been included in the internal auditors reports to senior 
management and Members (the Audit and Governance Committee). Additionally, 
any weaknesses identified through the Annual Governance Statement process were 
recorded separately and reflected the assurance provided from all sources both 
internal and external.  
 
Progress against 2021/22 Annual Plan 
 
A detailed analysis of the current situation regarding the 2021/22 Plan had been 
appended to the Internal Audit Annual Report. 
 
The assessment of auditable areas had identified 80 systems, which covered the 
Council’s operations. The audit coverage achieved in the period, compared to the 
audit plan, is set out in the table below. The difference in planned coverage 
compared to actual mainly related to significant Housing Benefit Grant Certification 
testing which was not reflected in these figures, all of which were included within 
regular progress reports issued to the Audit and Governance Committee. 

Page 9

Agenda Item 6



 

 
Percentage of  
systems covered 

Percentage of  
risk covered 

2021/22 2020/21 2021/22 2020/21 

Planned 39% 39% 63% 81% 

Achieved 25% 6% 55% 9% 

 
Liaison with External Audit 
 
The Head of Internal Audit had liaised with the External Auditor; providing 
documentation to assist in the delivery of their work where requested. The aim was 
to maximise the benefit from the Internal Audit Service by avoiding duplication of 
coverage and facilitating where appropriate the External Audit Auditor’s approach, in 
order to provide maximum assurance, although this may not be possible in all 
instances. 
 
The Head of Internal Audit reported that as part of the Council’s responsibility to take 
action against potential fraud and corruption, a “Whistle-blowing” facility (or Fraud 
Hotline/webform) had been established since May 1998; for use by Council staff, 
contractors, suppliers and members of the public. The facility was operated by 
Internal Audit and call/report details were either investigated by Internal Audit, the 
Council’s Revenues and Benefits Team, or forwarded to the DWP for Housing 
Benefit fraud. A minor number were referred in specific instances to Public Protection 
Services, Housing etc. 
 

Fraud Hotline Calls 

Calls 
received 

Revenues/ 
Benefit related Staff Related Other Total 

2021/22 22 0 52 74 

2020/21 35 1 28 64 

 
The following table summarised the assurance levels recorded in final reports relating 
to the years 2021/22 and 2020/21, draft reports were not included. 
 

Final 
Reports 

Total 

Unqualified 
Assurance 

Substantial 
Assurance 

Restricted 
Assurance 

No 
Assurance 

No. % No. % No. % No. % 

2021/22 16 0 0 7 44 6 37 3 9 

2020/21 5 0 0 4 80 1 20 0 0 

 
The conclusions and assurance levels specified for each audit were used to support 
the Council’s governance review arrangements, as required by the Accounts and Audit 
Regulations 2015 and the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards. 
 

Page 10

Agenda Item 6



A summary of the number of audit recommendations made in the Internal Audit Final 
Reports issued during 2021/22, along with the management responses were as 
follows:- 
 

Recommendations Total Priority 1 Priority 2 Priority 3 

Made 2021/22 86 30 50 6 

Fully Accepted 75 24 45 6 

Partly Accepted 11 6 5 0 

Not Accepted 0 0 0 0 

 
Comparative figures for 2020/21 are as follows: 
 

Recommendations Total Priority 1 Priority 2 Priority 3 

Made 2020/21 17 2 8 7 

Fully Accepted 17 2 8 7 

Partly Accepted 0 0 0 0 

Not Accepted 0 0 0 0 

 
During the year we have reported on the implementation of 62 agreed audit 
recommendations made in previous reports. The results are as follows: 
 

 Fully 

Implemented 

Not 
Implemented 

Overtaken 
By Events 

TOTAL 

2021/22 26 37 0 63 

2020/21 0 0 0 0 

 
RESOLVED:- To note the Internal Audit Annual Report for 2021-2022. 
 
9 – Risk Management  
 
The Head of Legal and Governance & Monitoring Officer reported that the Risk 
Registers were submitted to the Senior Management Team on a quarterly basis to 
ensure they remained up to date and relevant. 
 
There were no additional risks but the energy price pressures had been included in 
reference 7/21/1 “Economic Change”; the mitigated score had been considered and 
was unchanged but market pressures had been added and the scores should be 
reconsidered as part of the review process. 
 
RESOLVED:- To note the Risk Management Report 
  

Page 11

Agenda Item 6



 
10 – Statement of Accounts Update 
 
The Financial Services Manager reported that at the Audit and Governance 
Committee held on 27 April 2022, the Statement of Accounts for 2020-2021 was 
authorised for issue and subsequently published. 
 
The Audit Findings Report identified actions for management and the status of those 
actions was set out below. 
 
Minimum Revenue Provision 
 
The Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Policy had been reviewed by the Executive 
Committee and was considered to be prudent and appropriately calculated based 
upon: 

 the average useful economic life of the Council’s assets where borrowing was 
not asset specific; 

 the continued benefit/use of the Council’s assets in delivering services; 

 the MRP charge must be prudent – affordable; and 

 the 1 April 2008 split had been applied as there was no requirement to relate 
borrowing to assets before that time. 
 

The Council’s Capital Financing Requirement at 31 March 2021 was £36.346m: 
 

 General Fund £19.139m 

 Housing Revenue Account £17.207m 
 
The MRP charge to the General Fund for 2020-2021 was £736k which was 4% of the 
General Fund Capital Financing Requirement. 
 
Valuation of Land and Buildings 
 
There had been delays in finalising the audit of the financial statements due to the 
absence or accuracy of source evidence underpinning the valuation of land and 
buildings. 
 
The valuation of land and buildings was a specific area of the audit and was a high 
value item within the accounting statements which relied upon expertise alongside a 
robust assessment by management. 
 
For the accounting statements for 2021-2022 the Council had instructed a valuer that 
was new to the authority. 
 
The Council had provided a significant volume of information relating to the assets 
and the Finance Department were liaising with colleagues in other departments 
where relevant information was held. 
 
The valuer was aware of the Statement of Accounts publication requirements and the 
timetable relied upon full information being provided by the Council and all queries 
dealt with expeditiously. 

Page 12

Agenda Item 6



 
An update would be provided at the meeting, but it was anticipated that the  
publication of the Statement of Accounts (subject to audit) would be mid-August to 
ensure that there was time for a robust management review of the valuations. 
 
Group Accounts 
 
Members would recall that Barrow Forward Limited was established from 1 February 
2022 to operate the Park Leisure Centre. 
 
The Council wholly owned the company and must create group accounts as well 
as the usual single entity financial statements. For 2021-2022 that brought February 
and March 2022 into consideration. The company had opted to submit their initial 
accounting statements for a 14 month period as permitted by Government. 
 
The consolidation exercise was new for the Council and there may be challenges in 
obtaining the precise information required. Officers would discuss group accounts 
further with the Appointed Auditors. 
 
RESOLVED:- To note the Statement of Accounts Update. 
 
10 – Local Code of Corporate Governance 
 
The Head of Legal and Governance & Monitoring Officer reported that Local 
Authorities should have in place an effective system of internal control. The Code 
was designed to define how the Council would aim to deliver good governance 
throughout its activities and operations. 
 
Under the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015, the Council was required to review 
the effectiveness of its system of internal control. It assesses the actual achievement 
of these aims through the production of the Council’s Annual Governance Statement. 
This was a separate mandatory document which was issued with the annual financial 
statements and signed by those charged with delivering good governance. 
 
CIPFA published a governance framework for local authorities which provided a 
shared understanding of what constitutes good governance in the public sector. 
 
The Local Code of Governance represented a key component of the Council’s 
governance arrangements and applied to all Council members, officers, partners 
and stakeholders in their dealings with the Council. Although the core principles 
had not changed there had been some improvements that had been introduced in 
the last year and these had been incorporated into the code. 
 
The Code had been circulated to members of Management Team and Internal Audit 
for input, and the Audit and Governance Committee was invited to consider and 
endorse the code. 
 
RESOLVED:- To approve the Local Code of Corporate Governance. 
 
 

Page 13

Agenda Item 6



The Chair and External Auditors wished for it to be placed on record their thanks to 
Keith Jackson for his hard work over the years as this would be his last Audit & 
Governance Committee Meeting.  
 
The meeting closed at 2.50 p.m. 

Page 14

Agenda Item 6



PART ONE 

Barrow Borough Council  

Audit and Governance Committee 

Thursday, 20 October 2022 

Annual Audit and Statutory Recommendation Reports  

 
 

Report from:   Director of Resources  

Report Author:  Director of Resources 

Wards:    (All Wards); 

 

1.0  Summary and Conclusions  

1.1 The Auditor’s Annual Report in relation to the financial year 2020-2021 will be 

presented at the meeting by the Appointed Auditor along with the Statutory 

Recommendations Report. 

 

1.2 The Appointed Auditor has concluded that there is significant weakness in 

relation to procurement and contract management and has made three statutory 

recommendations that were presented to Full Council on the 18 October 2022. 

 

1.3 The financial statements were unqualified with that opinion issued 4 May 2022. 

 

2.0  Recommendation  

2.1 It is recommended that the Audit and Governance Committee:-  

 

Receive the Auditor’s Annual Report and raise any questions, and 

Receive the Statutory Recommendations Report and raise any questions. 

 

3.0 Background and Proposals  

3.1 The Auditor’s Annual Report for the financial year 2020-2021 is attached as 

Appendix 1 and will be presented at the meeting by the Appointed Auditor, 

Grant Thornton. 

 

3.2  The Auditor’s Annual Report presents the conclusion of the financial statements 

audit and the value for money arrangements. 

 

3.3 The Appointed Auditor has concluded that there is significant weakness in 

relation to procurement and contract management, and some improvements in 

financial sustainability have been identified. 

Page 15

Agenda Item 8



 

3.4 The Appointed Auditor has made three statutory recommendations, and these 

were considered, alongside an improvement plan, by Full Council on the 18 

October 2022. 

 

3.5 The Statutory Recommendations Report is attached as Appendix 2. 

 

3.5 The financial statements were unqualified; that opinion was issued on 4 May 

2022. 

 

3.6 The Appointed Auditor shall present these reports and the subsequent item on 

the agenda enlarges the management responses included within the Grant 

Thornton reports.  That report also brings forward a combined Improvement Plan 

for Audit and Governance Committee. 

 

4.0 Consultation  

4.1 Consultation is not relevant to this report which is a part of a statutory process. 

 

5.0  Alternative Options  

5.1 There are no alternative options to recommend but Members are encouraged to 

raise any questions.  

 

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities  

6.1 In order to be able to deliver Council Plan Priorities the Council must be 

financially resilient and have good financial management.  The opinion of the 

appointed auditor informs financial management and the value for money 

conclusion focusses on the Council’s use of resources. 

 

7.0 Implications  

7.1 Financial, Resources and Procurement  

7.1.1 There are no financial, resource or procurement implications arising from this 

report.  

 

7.2 Legal  

7.2.1 The statutory recommendations report is on the agenda for the Council meeting 

on 18 October 2022. The Council is legally required to respond to any statutory 

recommendations made by the external auditor and demonstrate action is being 

or will be taken to address issues raised in the report.  

 

7.3 Local Government Reorganisation 

7.3.1 There are no impacts on the process of Local Government Reorganisation; the 

  Council’s finances will be aggregated into the Westmorland and Furness Council 

  upon vesting day. 

 

Page 16

Agenda Item 8



7.4 Equality and Diversity  

7.4.1 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis?  No, the report has no direct 
 Equality and Diversity implications. 
 
Risk 

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

The Statement of Accounts 

with the Annual Governance 

Statement are not published, 

and the audit is not 

completed. 

Reputational risk. 

 

Impacts on later 

financial years. 

Plan and timetable. 

 

Liaison with appointed 

auditors. 

 

Contact Officers  

Director of Resources directorsadmin@barrowbc.gov.uk  

 

Appendices Attached to this Report 

Appendix No.  Name of Appendix  

1  Auditor’s Annual Report 

2 Statutory Recommendations Report 

 

 

Page 17

Agenda Item 8

mailto:directorsadmin@barrowbc.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



P
age 19

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 1



Commercial in confidence

P
age 20

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 1



Commercial in confidence

P
age 21

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 1



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

P
age 22

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 1



Commercial in confidence

P
age 23

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 1



Commercial in confidence

P
age 24

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 1



Commercial in confidence

P
age 25

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 1



Commercial in confidence

P
age 26

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 1



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 27

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 1



Commercial in confidence

P
age 28

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 1



Commercial in confidence

P
age 29

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 1



Commercial in confidence

P
age 30

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 1



Commercial in confidence

P
age 31

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 1



Commercial in confidence

P
age 32

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 1



Commercial in confidence

P
age 33

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 1



Commercial in confidence

P
age 34

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 1



Commercial in confidence

P
age 35

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 1



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 36

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 1



Commercial in confidence

P
age 37

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 1



Commercial in confidence

P
age 38

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 1



Commercial in confidence

P
age 39

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 1



Commercial in confidence

P
age 40

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 1



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

P
age 41

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 1



Commercial in confidence

P
age 42

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 1



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 43

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 1



Commercial in confidence

P
age 44

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 1



Commercial in confidence

P
age 45

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 1



Commercial in confidence

P
age 46

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 1



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

P
age 47

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 1



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 48

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 1



Commercial in confidence

P
age 49

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 1



Commercial in confidence

P
age 50

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 1



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 51

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 1



P
age 52

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 1



Commercial in confidence

•

•

P
age 53

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 1



Commercial in confidence

P
age 54

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 1



Commercial in confidence

P
age 55

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 1



P
age 56

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 1



P
age 57

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 2



•

•

P
age 58

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 2



Commercial in confidence

P
age 59

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 2



Commercial in confidence

P
age 60

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 2



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 61

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 2



Commercial in confidence

P
age 62

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 2



Commercial in confidence

P
age 63

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 2



Commercial in confidence

P
age 64

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 2



P
age 65

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 2



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

P
age 66

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 2



P
age 67

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 2



T
his page is intentionally left blank



PART ONE 

Barrow Borough Council  

Audit Committee and Governance 

20 October 2022 

Audit and Governance Improvement Plan and Draft Annual 

Governance Statement  
 

   

Report from:   Head of Legal and Governance 

Report Author:  Head of Legal and Governance 

Wards:    All  

 

1.0  Summary and Conclusions  

1.1  The Council has responsibility for ensuring that Council business is conducted 

within the law and proper standards, and that public money is safeguarded and 

properly accounted for.   

1.2 Part of this governance process is the preparation and publication of an Annual 

Governance Statement which is a self- assessment of how effective we consider 

our governance arrangements to be.  Recent internal and external audit reports 

have led to specific improvement plans being drafted and these have been 

combined into this report as part of the overall review of governance. 

2.0      Recommendations: 

(1) Members are requested to note and provide any feedback on the 

combined Audit and Governance Improvement Plan; and 

(2) Members are requested to consider the draft Annual Governance 

Statement and provide feedback 

(3) That Members review arrangements and escalation controls and 

agree the proposals as set out in paragraph 3.4 for future reporting. 

     

3.0 Background and Proposals  

3.1 As Members are aware from reports to Council external auditors have made three 

statutory recommendations for the year ended 31 March 2021, which the Council 

has responded to.  In addition, following the internal audit annual opinion further 

recommendations are in the process of being addressed and it is proposed that 

all actions arising from the improvement planning are combined into a single Audit 

and Governance Improvement Plan as set out in Appendix 1. 

Page 69

Agenda Item 9



3.2 The draft AGS is attached to the statement of accounts and has been updated for 

this agenda for any comment and feedback from Members before being presented 

with the accounts for final sign off (Appendix 2). The Council has assessed itself 

against the principles of good governance that are defined in the Local Code of 

Corporate Governance. 

3.3 The AGS has regard to internal and external audit concerns with regards to 

contracts and procurement and further reports will be presented to this 

Committee as appropriate.   

3.4 Statutory recommendation 3 recommends “Review the Council’s escalation 

arrangements up to Full Council and Overview and Scrutiny Committee to 

ensure an adequate and timely response to address significant control 

environment weaknesses”.  Following combination of Improvement Plans 

Members are asked to agree the Improvement Plan for Audit and Governance 

Committee to incorporate action where the Committee may refer to Overview 

and Scrutiny or to Full Council where appropriate. 

3.5 Formal monitoring of the implementation of agreed Internal Audit 

recommendations shall be established.  Recommendations may be 

implemented, outstanding, or overtaken by events.  Monitoring will ensure that 

timely intervention can occur, and recommendations are acted upon.  A reporting 

mechanism will be determined. 

4.0 Consultation  

 Audit and Governance Committee are being consulted through this meeting on 

the Annual Governance Statement. Management Team and relevant Senior 

Managers and Internal Audit have been consulted through the drafting process. 

 

5.0  Alternative Options  

5.1 The report is to consider the draft AGS and Improvement Plan and provide any 

feedback or recommend changes as appropriate. 

 

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities  

6.1 Good governance underpins the Council Plan priorities and supports its 

objectives. 

 

7.0 Implications  

Financial, Resources and Procurement  

7.1     There are no financial, resource or procurement implications arising from this 

report.  The AGS does, however, address concerns of previous audits with 

regards to procurement and contract matters and the action plan continues with 

the work to address those matters.  An independent Procurement Review was 

undertaken in 2021, which led to a revised Procurement Policy being adopted in 

January 2022, and new contract standing orders, guidance and training for 

procuring officers.  The new procedures came into effect on 1 April 2022 and 

have yet to be tested through the audit process. 

 

Page 70

Agenda Item 9



Legal  

7.2     There are no specific legal implications arising from this report.  The Council is 

legally required to respond to any statutory recommendations made by the 

external auditor and demonstrate action is being or will be taken to address 

issues raised through their reports. 

 

Local Government Reorganisation 

 

7.3 There are no issues to raise, this will be the last AGS for the Council, reporting 

moving forward will sit with the Westmorland and Furness Council. 

 

Equality and Diversity  

7.4     There are no equality or diversity implications related to this report. 

 

Risk 

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

Annual Governance 

Statement not published 

Reputational risk 

 

Impact on closing of 

accounts 

Plan and timetable 

 

Liaison with appointed 

auditors 

Failure to follow Improvement 

Plans  

No improvement, 

reputational risk 

Ensure monitoring and 

review of improvement 

planning 

 

Contact Officers  

dstorr@barrowbc.gov.uk 

 

Appendices Attached to this Report –  

Appendix No.  Name of Appendix  

1 Combined Audit and Governance Improvement Plan 

2 Draft Annual Governance Statement  

 

Background Documents Available 

Name of Background document  Where it is available  

Previous Annual Governance 

Statements and reports to 

Committee 

 

www.barrowbc.gov.uk  

 

 

Page 71

Agenda Item 9

http://www.barrowbc.gov.uk/


This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1 
 

Audit and Governance Committee Combined Improvement Plan 
 
Ref Action – (Statutory 

Recommendations) 
Responsible Lead Due Date Measure of 

Success 
Commentary/Progress 

Improving 
Governance 

1. Embed and enforce the Council’s updated contract standing orders and procurement rules 
(Officers in all departments to follow and fully evidence compliance with contract standing orders on all procured 
services) 

1.1 Ensure regular refresher 
training for procuring officers. 
 
Ensure Training Video easily 
accessible on the intranet. 

Procurement and 
Contract Lead 

Blanket training 
provided March 
2022; refresher 
training provided 
ad-hoc and to 
individuals where 
needed. 
 
Recording 
available from 
September 2022. 

No. of attendees. 
 
No. of confirmed 
views. 

All procuring officers 
were offered training in 
March 2022 on the new 
procurement rules and 
procedures. 
 
Recording of the training 
offered in March 2022; 
available to all officers to 
view as a refresher and 
to new officers as part of 
the induction training for 
those involved in 
procurement. 

1.2 Ensure guidance and 
handbook up to date and any 
changes notified to all 
managers and updated on the 
intranet. 

Procurement and 
Contract Lead 

Handbook up to 
date as at 9.9.22. 

Review 
log/record. 

Guidance and Handbook 
will be reviewed quarterly 
to ensure it is kept up to 
date.  A link to the 
Handbook will be 
circulated to all officers 
when any updates have 
been applied 

P
age 73

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 1



Ref Action – (Statutory 
Recommendations) 

Responsible Lead Due Date Measure of 
Success 

Commentary/Progress 

1.3 Spot Check of ordered goods 
and services made via 
intranet to ensure the 
procurement rules are being 
followed. 

Procurement and 
Contract Lead 

Quarterly - 
Ongoing 

Reduction in 
purchases made 
not following 
procurement 
rules.  

Identify areas of non-
compliance and offer 
further support/training to 
ensure all procurement 
rules are being followed. 

1.4 Training on Chest (ProActis). Procurement and 
Contract Lead 

Awaiting date from 
Proactis. 

No. of attendees. All procuring officers will 
be offered training on the 
Chest e-procurement 
site, alongside this a 
refresher of the new 
procurement rules will be 
run through as well.  

Improving 
Governance 

2.Ensure members and officers have robust assurance and reporting arrangements in place, for managing all 
ongoing contracts and to enable appropriate and timely action to remediate any non-compliance or wider 
deficiencies 
(As well as members receiving compliance assurance they need to demonstrate timely action in holding officers 
to account for any non-compliance) 

2.1 Schedule of significant 
contracts provided to the 
Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee. 
 
Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee to select those 
contracts to be reported on 
through the committee cycle. 

Procurement and 
Contract Lead 
 
 
Heads of Service 

In line with 
Overview and 
Scrutiny 
Committee 
workplan. 

N/A – no target 
no. 

Schedule provided to 
identify the scope of 
contracts; Overview and 
Scrutiny to select 
contracts; Heads of 
Service to report on 
contract management 
arrangements. 

2.2 Regular Progress Report to 
Corporate Programme Board 
to highlight any issues on the 
contracts register.  

Procurement and 
Contract Lead 

Commenced July 
2022 - monthly 

Elimination of 
rolling contracts. 

Any actions to be 
identified and fed back to 
relevant responsible 
officers. 

P
age 74

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 1



Ref Action – (Statutory 
Recommendations) 

Responsible Lead Due Date Measure of 
Success 

Commentary/Progress 

2.3 Procurement exemption 
report to Audit and 
Governance Committee. 

Procurement and 
Contract Lead 

December 2022 N/A Report to note the 
procurement exemption 
activity for the initial 6 
months of operating 
under the new 
arrangements. 

Improving 
Governance 

3.Review the Council’s escalation arrangements up to Full Council and Overview & Scrutiny Committee to ensure 
an adequate and timely response to address significant control environmental weaknesses. 
 
(good governance arrangements via the Audit and Governance Committee to escalate ongoing significant matters 
to both Full Council and Overview and Scrutiny Committee, to demonstrate effective accountability and to drive 
timely improvements) 

3.1 Review the outstanding 
current and historic Internal 
Audit recommendations and 
establish the monitoring 
scope and reporting route 
with the chair of the Audit and 
Governance Committee. 

Director of 
Resources & Head 
of Legal and 
Governance 

November 2022 Reduction in the 
no. of outstanding 
recommendations; 
focus on the high 
priority 
recommendations. 

There may be a resource 
required to maintain and 
report on progress – this 
will be dependent upon 
the number of 
recommendations that 
are live and can be 
actioned. 

3.2 Report to review 
arrangements and escalation 
controls to Audit and 
Governance Committee. 

Head of Legal and 
Governance & 
Director of 
Resources 

October 2022 N/A Referral and escalation 
routes clarified; this is 
additional to the 
recommendation review 
process at 3.1. 

  

P
age 75

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 1



Ref Action (Internal Audit 
Actions 2021-2022) 

Responsible Lead Due Date Measure of 
Success 

Commentary/Progress 

1. Recruitment Review Policy of References. 
 
Review of HR recruitment 
related procedures. 

HR Manager December 2022 N/A  

2. Accounts 
Receivable 

Ensuring recovery processes 
are resumed and review of 
instalments spreadsheet to 
ensure still appropriate and 
being adhered to. 
 
Review of invoice processing 
and monitoring any reasons 
for dispute. 
 
Review of processes to 
complete previous audit 
recommendations. 

Financial Services 
Manager 

December 2022   

3. Covid Risk 
Assessment 

Review of Control Measures 
and risk assessments. 
 

Head of Asset 
Management 

  Since this review was 
undertaken, health and 
safety has been 
supported through 
external Health and 
Safety Advisors who are 
working with the Head of 
Asset Management in 
ensuring that appropriate 
Health and Safety 
Policies, and procedures 
are in place, and will be 
monitored through the 

P
age 76

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 1



Ref Action (Internal Audit 
Actions 2021-2022) 

Responsible Lead Due Date Measure of 
Success 

Commentary/Progress 

Health and Safety 
Management Group. 

4. Performance 
Management 

Action being taken to review 
Performance Framework and 
associated procedures – 
Performance framework for 
2018 will be removed from the 
website and replaced with an 
updated document that 
reflects current arrangements. 
Recovery Tracker will 
continue to be published 
alongside the Growing 
Forward Report. 
More frequent reporting to 
Overview & Scrutiny. 

Director of 
Resources 

October 2022  There will be a new 
Performance 
Management Framework 
developed for 
Westmorland and 
Furness Council. 

5. Insurance Contract Management 
Checklists – process revised 
and updated procedures 
circulated  
Copy of Insurance Policies to 
be filed with Legal Services. 
Contract Register available on 
website and to staff and 
public. 

Director of 
Resources 

July 2022  Complete 

6. Housing – 
Staircase 
cleaning 

The contract register will be a 
standing item on the MT 
project board to provide 
further measures to ensure 
that appropriate measures 

Procurements and 
Contract Lead 

Immediate  The recommendations 
which relate to matters 
which cannot be undone 
are noted. 

P
age 77

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 1



Ref Action (Internal Audit 
Actions 2021-2022) 

Responsible Lead Due Date Measure of 
Success 

Commentary/Progress 

can be taken to ensure that 
any time constraints can be 
identified and managed 
appropriately. 

The procurement reset is 
intended to address audit 
concerns with regards to 
procurement and this will 
be tested in future audits. 

7. Procurement Explanation have been 
provided as requested. 
Management Team have 
been aware of auditor 
concerns from these and 
previous audits and have 
taken steps to address these.  
During 2021, a Procurement 
Review was undertaken by 
STAR procurement, a local 
authority shared service who 
are national leaders in 
procurement and shared 
services who work with 
organisations to deliver real 
and tangible transformation 
and approvements.  The 
review has led to a revised 
Procurement Strategy 
adopting in January 2022 and 
new contract standing orders 
and revised 
guidance/thresholds which 
have been implemented since 
1 April 2022.  Training for 

Management Team 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Complete  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 78

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 1



Ref Action (Internal Audit 
Actions 2021-2022) 

Responsible Lead Due Date Measure of 
Success 

Commentary/Progress 

procuring officers was 
provided through March 2022. 
 
The compliance requirements 
from previous audits were 
clarified in the procurement 
review/reset of 1 April 2022 
and was emphasised as part 
of the training delivered in 
March 2022. 
A new contract is being 
prepared for seasonal baskets 
but this was not completed by 
the December 31st 
implementation date because 
the resource was diverted to 
other activities. This has been 
extended for another season 
to allow planting for the 
spring/summer baskets and 
summer barrier baskets until 
the end of September. This 
was reported to Executive 
Committee in July 2022 and a 
tender specification is 
currently being drawn up prior 
to the tender being issued. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Head of Operations 
Tender current 
being readvertised 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
November 2022 
 

8. Catering and 
Cleaning at 
the forum 

Up to date contract register 
made available to the public – 
complete. 

Procurement and 
Contract Lead 
 

  The majority of 
recommendations relate 

P
age 79

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 1



Ref Action (Internal Audit 
Actions 2021-2022) 

Responsible Lead Due Date Measure of 
Success 

Commentary/Progress 

 
Ongoing management of 
Contract 
 

Head of Visitor and 
Economy 

to matters which cannot 
be undone. 
The procurement reset is 
intended to address audit 
concerns with regards to 
procurement and this will 
be tested in future audits. 
 
Calculation of Annual 
Commission payment 
was reviewed and initial 
action completed, and 
will be kept under review 
for the period of the 
contract. 

9. Cleaning of 
Barrow Town 
Hall and 
Associated 
buildings 

Ongoing management of 
contract 
 

Head of Asset 
Management 

  The majority of 
recommendations relate 
to matters which cannot 
be undone. 
The procurement reset is 
intended to address audit 
concerns with regards to 
procurement and this will 
be tested in future audits. 

 

Ref Action (Internal Audit 
Actions 2019-2020) 

Responsible Lead Due Date Measure of 
Success 

Commentary/Progress 

1. Leasing Phoenix Centre  Commercial Estate 
Manager 

  Lease arrangements are 
under consideration 

 

P
age 80

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 1



FM Code Improvements from 2021-2022 
 

Requirement Improvements 

The responsibilities of the chief finance officer and leadership team 

The leadership team can demonstrate that the services 
provided by the authority provide value for money. 

Improvements are as outlined in the Council’s response to the Statutory 
Recommendations of the appointed auditor. 

The authority complies with the CIPFA Statement on the Role of 
the Chief Finance Officer (CFO) in Local Government (2016). 

Recruit to complete the Finance establishment to provide the CFO with 
sufficient and relevant resources. 

Governance and financial management style 

The Council applies CIPFA/SOLACE 
"Delivering Good Governance in Local Government: 
Framework (2016)". 

Where reviews of the corporate governance arrangements reveal 
improvement recommendations, action is planned that will ensure 
effective governance in future. 

The Financial Management style of the Council supports 
financial sustainability. 

Refresher training for officers with financial responsibilities has been 
identified with the outcome of improving financial literacy and 
strengthening the accountability of budget managers and senior officers, 
which supports financial sustainability. 

Medium to long-term financial management 

The authority has carried out a credible and transparent 
financial resilience assessment. 

Make better use of benchmarking and the CIPFA resilience index when 
shaping the MTFP. 

The authority understands its prospects for financial 
sustainability in the longer term and has reported this clearly to 
members. 

Formalise long term financial planning/modelling. 

The authority complies with the CIPFA Prudential Code for 
Capital Finance in Local Authorities. 

The narrative in the capital strategy could be enhanced further with 
linkage to the Strategic Asset Management Plan. 

The authority has a rolling multi-year medium-term financial 
plan consistent with sustainable service plans. 

The Corporate Landlord approach will be implemented from 2022. 

Monitoring financial performance 

The leadership team takes action using reports, enabling it to 
identify and correct emerging risks to its budget strategy and 
financial sustainability. 

The Council is refreshing the service performance collection methodology. 

P
age 81

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 1



Requirement Improvements 

The chief finance officer has personal responsibility for ensuring 
that the statutory accounts provided to the local authority 
comply with the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting 
in the United Kingdom. 

The Council will prepare the Accounts within statutory deadlines and 
working papers will be produced to a high standard. The Council will 
continue close working with the external auditors to implement any audit 
recommendations. 

The presentation of the final outturn figures and variations from 
budget allow the leadership team to make strategic financial 
decisions. 

The Council will continue to review the format and usefulness of its 
performance reporting. 

 
 

P
age 82

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 1



 

Page 0 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Version Control:  

Document Name: Annual Governance Statement 2022 

Version: Version 1.2 (07/10/22) 

Author: Head of Legal and Governance 

Approved by: Audit and Governance Committee 

Date Approved:  

Review Date:  

 

Page 83

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 2



 

Page 1 

Annual Governance Statement 2021-2022 
 
1. Scope and Responsibility 
 
Barrow Borough Council is responsible for delivering a wide range of statutory 
and discretionary services to the public and organisations in the area of the 
Borough.  The Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is 
conducted in accordance with law and proper standards, and that public 
money is safeguarded and properly accounted for, and used economically, 
efficiently and effectively.  The Council also has a duty under the Local 
Government Act 1999 to make arrangements to secure continuous 
improvement in the way in which its functions are exercised, having regard to 
a combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness. 
 
In discharging this overall responsibility, the Council has put in place proper 
arrangements for the governance of its affairs and facilitating the effective 
exercise of its functions, which includes arrangements for the management of 
risk. 
 
2. Governance 
 
Governance comprises the arrangements put in place to ensure that the 
intended outcomes for stakeholders are defined and achieved. 
 
3. The Council’s Governance Framework 
 
Effective governance in the public sector encourages improved decision 
making and efficient use of resources. Effective governance is characterised 
by robust scrutiny, which provides important pressures for improving public 
sector performance and tackling corruption. Effective governance can improve 
management and lead to better service delivery, and, ultimately, better 
outcomes. 
 
The governance framework comprises the systems and processes for the 
direction and control of the Council and its activities through which it accounts 
to, engages with and leads the community. It enables the Council to monitor 
the achievement of its strategic objectives and to consider whether those 
objectives have led to the delivery of appropriate, cost-effective services. 
 
The system of internal control is a significant part of the governance 
framework and is designed to manage risk to a reasonable and proportionate 
level. It cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and 
objectives and can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute 
assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an on-
going process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement 
of Barrow Borough Council’s policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the 
likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, 
and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically.  
 

Page 84

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 2



 

Page 2 

The Principles of Good Governance and the Governance Framework is 
aligned to the CIPFA/SOLACE framework Delivering Good Governance in 
Local Government which sets out seven core principles of good governance, 
these are:  
 
A. Behaving with integrity, demonstrating a strong commitment to ethical 

values, and respecting the rule of law. 
 

 The Council’s constitution defines the roles and responsibilities of the 
Council’s decision making, regulatory, Audit and Governance and 
Overview and Scrutiny committees. It also defines the roles of the 
statutory officers and includes the delegations that officers hold. 

 Members and officers have an induction which sets out and includes 
the behaviours that are expected. 

 The Council’s values and behaviours was rolled out to all staff and 
Members during 2020-21. 

 A fraud hotline is in place to allow confidential reporting so that 
anonymous complaints can be investigated. 

 
B. Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement. 
 

 There is a process for consultation in place and a number of 
consultations were carried out in 2021/22.  A major consultation in 
2022 being the consultation on the community governance review 
which is looking at whether to create a new Parish Council for the 
unparished area of the borough. 

 We have a  new Customer services strategy which sets out what we 
need to do to ensure our customers have a positive experience when 
engaging with the Council. 

 The Council continues to develop its website and social media 
platforms to provide a key means of communication in an open and 
transparent way. 

 We provide clear recommendations to the decision making committees, 
this is by supported reasoning and evidence. We assess the financial, 
legal, health, social, economic environmental and implications as well 
risks relating to those decisions and provide Members with the outputs 
from those assessments. 
 

C. Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social and 
environmental benefits. 

 

 The Council published its council plan for 2020- 2024 and has identified 
three priority areas. 

 Operational Managers work to ensure we deliver the priorities agreed 
in the Council Plan 

Page 85

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 2



 

Page 3 

 The Council was successful in being awarded Town Deal funding for 7 
major projects within the Borough as follows: 

Housing Renewal 

Marina Village 

Enhancing tourism, leisure and culture,  

Community resilience hubs 

Learning quarter 

Business support and 

Walking and cycling infrastructure regeneration. 

 The Council was successful in securing £16m from the Government’s 
Levelling Up Fund to deliver a range of improvements within Barrow 
Town Centre, including an upgrade of the Market Hall. Design work is 
progressing in 22/23 with works programmed in 23/24.  
 

 A detailed communication strategy has been developed for both the 
Town Deal and LUF programmes, with a clear focus placed on regular 
and meaningful engagement with strategic partners, local businesses 
and residents.   

 
D. Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of 

intended outcomes. 
 

 The Medium Term Financial Strategy is reviewed annually 

 The Council’s operational services ensure we deliver the priorities 
agreed in the Council Plan  

 The Council supports and encourages staff to undertake professional 
training. 

 The Council has an effective Member training programme in place 

 Staff have regular briefings with senior management. 
 

E. Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong 
public financial management. 

 

 The Council has a risk policy which is reviewed regularly by 
Management Team and is approved by the Executive Committee. 

 The Council has corporate and operational risk registers which are 
reviewed regularly by Management Team and the Audit and 
Governance Committee. 
 

 All Capital and Revenue projects utilise a standardised risk register that 
scores and RAG rates risks. These are reported to Corporate 
Programme Board. 
 

Page 86

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 2



 

Page 4 

 Performance is reported through the statement of accounts and 
Growing Forward Reports which are presented to Executive 
Committee, and performance information is also reported through 
Overview & Scrutiny Committee. 

 
F. Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting and audit to deliver 

effective accountability. 
 

 The Audit and Governance Committee has defined roles which are set 
out in the Council’s Constitution. 

 External auditors routinely attend Audit and Governance Committee 
meetings. 

 Internal Audit has access to the Chair of the Audit and Governance 
Committee. 

 Members are asked to declare any interests at the beginning of every 
committee meeting. 

 

4. Review of Effectiveness 
 
Barrow Borough Council has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a 
review of the effectiveness of its governance framework including the system 
of internal control. The review of effectiveness is informed by the work of the 
senior managers within the Council who have responsibility for the 
development and maintenance of the governance environment, the Head of 
Internal Audit’s annual report, and also by comments made by the appointed 
auditors and other review agencies and inspectorates. 
 
Management Team including the following Officers were involved in reviewing 
this Annual Governance Statement: 
 

 Chief Executive - Head of Paid Service 

 Director of Resources – Section 151 Officer 

 Director of People and Place 

 Head of Legal and Governance - Monitoring Officer 

 
The Head of Internal Audit and Heads of Service were also consulted.  
Internal Audit’s annual opinion statement forms part of this annual governance 
statement. 
 
The Council has assessed itself against the principles of good governance 
that are defined in the Local Code of Corporate Governance. 
 
5. The Constitution 
 
The Borough of Barrow-in-Furness has updated and agreed a Constitution 
which sets out how the Council operates, how decisions are made and the 

Page 87

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 2

https://www.barrowbc.gov.uk/the-council/barrow-council/council-constitution/


 

Page 5 

procedures, which are followed to ensure that these are efficient, transparent 
and accountable to local people. 
 
Some of these processes are required by the law, while others are a matter 
for the Council to choose and set out the basic rules governing the Council's 
business. 
 
The Constitution is regularly reviewed to ensure it is fit for purpose. The 
review in 2020 considered delegation and procedural arrangements and also 
had regard to the recommendations of the Local Government Association 
Governance Review. Changes were made to address the implications brought 
about by the Coronavirus Pandemic, e.g., virtual meetings, when decision 
making was further reviewed and a Virtual Meetings Rules and Protocol was 
adopted.   
 
The Monitoring Officer undertakes an annual review, and this was last 
reported to Council in March 2022. The report considered changes to the 
contract standing orders and financial regulations following the recent 
procurement review.  
 
The Constitution sets out the Council’s ethical standards for Elected Members 
and Officers.  
 
We have reviewed and adopted formal codes of conduct defining standards of 
personal behaviour for Members and Officers. The Monitoring Officer monitors 
compliance with the Member’s code of conduct. The Members code has been 
reviewed taking account of best practice recommendations arising from the 
Committee on Standards in Public Life. Revised Standards Arrangements 
were also adopted in March 2021. The Members Code of Conduct was further 
updated in January 2022 following the LGA model Code and consideration by 
the Cumbria Monitoring Officers Group for a consistent code for the Cumbrian 
principal authorities.  This same code was put forward for adoption by the 
Shadow Authority for Westmorland and Furness. 
 
The Chief Executive and Head of Paid Service has overall responsibility for 
ensuring compliance with the officer’s code of conduct.  
 
We have put in place effective systems to protect the rights of staff. We 
ensure that policies for whistleblowing are accessible to staff and those 
contracting with the Council, and arrangements for the support of whistle-
blowers, are in place. 
 
The Constitution includes the Council’s Contract Standing Orders, Financial 
Regulations, committee structure, delegation powers and how the Council 
operates.  The Contract Standing Orders were subject of a full review during 
2021/22 as a result of an independent procurement review and adoption of a 
revised procurement strategy, reflecting best practice, and ensuring 
compliance with national and local standards. 
 

Page 88

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 2



 

Page 6 

The Section 151 Officer is responsible to the Council for ensuring that 
appropriate advice is given on all financial matters, for keeping proper 
financial records and accounts, and for maintaining an effective system of 
internal control. 
 
The Council takes a longer-term view and publishes plans so the public are 
aware of our intended outcomes. This information can be found published in 
documents including the Council’s Priorities and the Council Plan.  
 
The Council has prepared and published a plan which sets out the Council’s 
priorities and a Medium Term Financial Plan which is a financial 
representation of the Council’s Vision and supports the priorities.   
 
The Council will enable the Chief Financial Officer to bring influence to bear 
on all material decisions and provide advice on the levels of reserves and 
balances to be retained. The Chief Financial Officer has responsibility for 
ensuring compliance with relevant laws and regulations, internal policies and 
procedures, and that expenditure is lawful. 
 
The CIPFA Financial Management Code was introduced from 2021-2022; this 

is a professional code for general financial management in local authorities.  It 

is designed to support good practice in financial management and to assist 

local authorities in demonstrating their financial sustainability.  The FM Code 

has the six principles of leadership, accountability, transparency, standards, 

assurance and sustainability.  Compliance is demonstrated through a self-

assessment.  A number of improvements have been identified and included in 

the FM Code Improvements from 2021-2022 at Appendix 3. 

6. Decision Making Process 
 
The Council Plan is a strategic document under which the Council’s other 
policy framework documents sit. It communicates the Council’s Vision which 
specifies intended outcomes for the period from 2020-2024. The plan details 
how the Council will achieve the priorities. The Council plan will be supported 
by service plans which reflect the Council’s priorities. 
 
Unless delegated to Officers, Council decisions are made by a Committee 
acting under delegated powers or by Full Council. All meetings are open to 
the public unless exempt information is being discussed and we attempt to 
publish all committee agenda items under “Part 1” unless there is the need to 
preserve confidentiality where it is appropriate to do so. 
 
The Constitution sets out clearly the Council’s decision making processes 
including the Officer Delegation Scheme and terms of reference for its 
committees. 
 
The Council is developing a management structure that provides leadership 
and creates the opportunity for staff to work effectively and efficiently to 
achieve the Council objectives. We will provide training and support to enable 

Page 89

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 2

file://///bbc-filestore/jpenfold/Downloads/4265%20BBC%20Council%20Plan%202020%20(30).pdf


 

Page 7 

staff to develop their skills so they can achieve their full potential. We will 
develop skills on a continuing basis to improve performance, including the 
ability to scrutinise and challenge and to recognise when external expert 
advice is needed. We will ensure that the statutory officers have the skills, 
resources and support necessary to perform effectively in their roles and that 
these roles are properly understood throughout the Council. 
 
Members are provided with financial and performance reports on a regular 
basis which demonstrates how the Council achieves value for money. 
 
Agendas, reports and minutes for all Council meetings are published on the 
Council’s website. Committee Reports and Minutes 
 
7. Customer Engagement 
 
We strive to engage with stakeholders on an individual and collective basis to 
demonstrate that we deliver services and outcomes which meet the needs 
and expectations of the public. These arrangements will recognise that 
different sections of the community have different priorities and establish 
robust processes for dealing with these competing demands. 
 
Barrow Borough Council welcomes and encourages attendance and 
contributions by the public at its meetings. Public participation guidelines are 
in place and support the Council’s commitment to community governance and 
openness. 
 
The Council has an ambitious customer service strategy which defines how 
we will engage with customers and other stakeholders and involve them in 
improving our services.  
 
During 2022 a major public consultation exercise has been undertaken as part 
of the community governance review in looking at whether to establish a 
parish/town council for the unparished area of the borough. 
 
A taster day was held at the forum on 30 March 2022, showcasing the Town 
Centre Community Hub and feedback sought. 
 
Public consultations, alongside targeted consultations with businesses and 
other strategic partners, are planned in 2022 and 2023 for the Barrow Town 
Centre Improvements funded through the Levelling Up Fund.  
 
The Place Programme, funded through Town Deal, will seek public feedback 
on the proposed event spaces at Barrow outdoor market and the Dock 
Museum. Feedback forms will also be issued to the public attending a range 
of events organised through the Place Programme and the results will be 
reported formally to the Brilliant Barrow Board.  
 

Page 90

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 2

http://www.barrowbc.gov.uk/about-the-council/barrow-council/council-minutes-agendas/


 

Page 8 

 
8. Partnership Working 
 
The Council participates in formal and informal partnerships to allow for 
resources to be used more efficiently and outcomes to be achieved more 
effectively. The Council is actively involved in partnership boards that deliver 
key improvements to the Borough. 
 
We contribute to and support initiatives that benefit the residents and 
businesses in the Borough.  We ensure that partnerships are based on trust, a 
shared commitment to change and a culture that promotes and accepts 
challenge among partners. 
 
When supporting stakeholder relationships, we are clear about the Terms of 
Reference and clearly define our role. Our arrangements will recognise that 
different sections of the community have different priorities and establish 
robust processes for dealing with these competing demands. 
 
9. Managing Risk 
 
The Council recognises that risk management is an integral part of all 
activities and must be considered in all aspects of decision making. We have 
risk management arrangements in place including mitigating actions to 
support the achievement of the Council’s intended outcomes. We work with 
our contractors to understand our shared risks. We ensure that risk 
management is embedded into the culture of the Council, with Members and 
managers at all levels recognising that risk management is part of their job.  

Risk management is a fundamental part of the process that has been 
established for managing major projects through the Corporate Programme 
Board, allowing Senior Management Team to manage risk in the delivery of 
the Capital Programme. 

External Health and Safety Advisors work with the Head of Asset 
Management, elected members and senior management team to ensure 
appropriate Health and Safety Policies, and procedures are in place. Risks 
are monitored through the Health and Safety Management Board and Health 
and Safety Management Group.  
 

During 2022 the Council plans to engage an external specialist to review the 
corporate risk policy, the format of the corporate risk registers, and to provide 
training for the various levels of staff and for Members. 
 
10. Managing Performance 
 
The Council Plan sets out the strategic objectives as outcomes that will 
contribute to the overall vision to be a great place to live, work and visit. 
 
The Council’s performance management arrangements of 2018 have been 
superseded by the introduction of the Growing Forward report as a vehicle for 

Page 91

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 2



 

Page 9 

strategic performance and achievement. The roles set out in the 2018 
framework are unchanged with Heads of Service replacing Managers. 
 
For operational performance there are certain elements captured by the 
Growing Forward report and others that are reported from Head of Service to 
Director, or Deputy Director.  The key performance indicators are included in 
the annual Statement of Accounts and presented to the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee.   
 
The Recovery Tracker is the tool used to monitor strategic performance and 
this is published alongside the Growing Forward Report. 
 
Complaints and Absence Management are reported regularly through 
Management Team, with complaints also being reported through to the Audit 
and Governance Committee. Other performance issues are reported by 
exception. 
 
The outcomes and progress against the Council Plan is reported as the 
Growing Forward report at least once a year, plus the progress on major 
projects is presented at the Major Projects Advisory Board and Brilliant 
Barrow (Town Deal) Board quarterly. 
 
The Council produces a number of strategies and policies to ensure we 
comply with our responsibilities in terms of Use of Resources and Value for 
Money; these are published on the Council’s website. Corporate Documents. 
 
11. Managing Data 
 
The Council undertook a review of data management in preparation for the 
implementation of the General Data Protection Regulation which has 
delivered improvements to internal controls to facilitate compliance with the 
regulation. 
 
The Council has made significant investment in the IT infrastructure to 
minimise the loss of data through cyber attacks. 
 
The policies which form part of the overarching Information Security 
Management Systems were reviewed during 2021 taking on board previous 
internal audit recommendations. 
 
The Council is currently undergoing a review of its Document Retention 
Schedule and Information Asset Register and is working with Cumbria 
colleagues to prepare for transfer to the new Westmorland and Furness 
Council. 
 
12. Governance Arrangements and Internal Control 
 
We maintain the Audit and Governance Committee to raise awareness and 
take the lead in ensuring high standards of conduct are embedded within the 

Page 92

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 2

http://www.barrowbc.gov.uk/about-the-council/corporate-documents/


 

Page 10 

Council’s culture. The governance function of the Audit and Governance 
Committee includes: 
 

 Consider reports and opinion of the internal audit function. 

 Consider specific reports from internal audit and ensure agreed 
recommendations are implemented in a reasonable time frame. 

 Consider reports and opinion of the appointed auditor. 

 Monitor the risk management process. 

 Monitor the Councils policies on the anti-fraud and anti-corruption 
strategy which are detailed in the Code of Governance. 

 
An annual report of the Committee was presented to the Annual Council in 
May 2022. 
 
13. Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 
The Council operates with a single Overview and Scrutiny Committee which 
can challenge a decision by the Executive Committee prior to it being 
implemented. It has a remit, which allows them to assist the Council and the 
Executive in the development of its budget and policy framework. 
 
Members of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee are offered formal training 
by an external provider. 
 
In March 2022 as part of the annual review of the Constitution membership of 
the Committee was clarified to make it clear that the Leader should not sit as 
a member of the Overview & Scrutiny Committee. 
 
14. Internal Audit 

 
The internal audit function develops an annual audit plan which is risk based 
and it is agreed by the Director of Resources and the Audit and Governance 
Committee. The audit plan provides a structured approach to reviewing 
internal control arrangements.  
 
Based on the Plan, Internal Audit provides specific reports and 
recommendations. It also provides an Annual Report on the internal control 
arrangements which includes an audit opinion in support of the Council’s 
Annual Governance Statement as required under the Accounts and Audit 
Regulations 2015. The opinion is derived from work carried out by Internal 
Audit during the year as part of the agreed Internal Audit Plan.   
 

15. Internal Control Environment 
 
Internal controls are designed to help safeguard the Council and minimise 
risks to delivery.  The controls exist to ensure accuracy, promote efficiency, 
and encourage adherence to policies, rules, regulations, and laws. 
 
Collectively the internal controls form an environment that is independently 
assessed by the Internal Audit function.  The Head of Internal Audit is required 

Page 93

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 2



 

Page 11 

to issue an independent opinion of the Councils internal controls as part of the 
Annual Report. 
 
The opinion for the financial year 2021-2022 is extracted from the published 
Internal Audit Annual Report and is presented in Section 16. 
 
An Action Plan is presented as referenced in Section 17 to address the 
concerns identified from the Internal Audit reports issued in relation to 2021-
2022. 
 
16. Head of Internal Audit Annual Opinion Statement 
 
This opinion statement is provided in support of the Council’s Annual 
Governance Statement as required under the Accounts and Audit Regulations 
2015. The opinion is derived from work carried out by Internal Audit during the 
year as part of the agreed Internal Audit Plan. The Plan for 2021/22 was 
developed to primarily provide management with independent assurance on 
the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control environment. 
 
The PSIAS state that the internal control environment comprises three key 
areas: internal control, governance and risk management processes. My 
opinion on the effectiveness of the internal control environment is based on an 
assessment of each of these key areas. 
 
As referred to above, there is a requirement for the “system of Internal 
Control” to include an assessment of sources of assurance, beyond just that 
of Internal Audit itself. As the Council is required to produce an Annual 
Governance Statement, sources of assurance are reflected and reviewed 
within this process, which Internal Audit are a part of; therefore, the control 
environment is reviewed more fully in this way. 
 
2021/22 Year Opinion 
 
This report provides limited assurance that the organisation’s framework of 
governance, transparency, risk management and control predominantly 
operated satisfactorily during 2021/22. 
 
My detailed opinion is that, for the systems reviewed, the Council has a 
number of basically sound systems of control in place, although there are 
certain significant weaknesses which put some of the system objectives at 
risk, these mainly relate to areas of contract management and control, leases, 
procurement and specific individual systems as reported. 
 
Areas where only Restricted Assurance can be provided, which relate to the 
following reports: 
 

 Recruitment 

 Accounts receivable 

 Covid Risk Assessment – Post Assurance report 

 Performance Management 

Page 94

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 2



 

Page 12 

 Insurance and 

 Housing – Staircase cleaning. 
 

Of more concern there are areas where No Assurance has been provided, 
these relate to: 
 

 Procurement 

 Forum Catering and Cleaning; and 

 Cleaning of Barrow Town Hall and Associated Buildings 2023-23 
 

In addition, there are five areas where No Assurance has been assigned to 
initial draft reports, due to the lack of information provided and potential non-
compliance (varying levels of information have been provided since the issue 
of these reports, which will be audited within the 2022/23 plan). 
 

 Future High Street Consultancy 

 Lift servicing and maintenance 

 Electrical Installation Testing 

 Electrical Reactive Maintenance; and 

 Heating, Ventilation, and Air Conditioning Servicing and Maintenance 
 
Weaknesses found as a result of our work, together with our 
recommendations for improvement, have been included in our reports to 
senior management and Members (the Audit and Governance Committee). 
Additionally, any weaknesses identified through the Annual Governance 
Statement process are recorded separately and reflect the assurance 
provided from all sources both internal and external. 
 
Co-operation 

 
The successful achievement of the audit plan is dependent on the contribution 
of the Internal Audit resource and the Council’s staff as audit clients. I would 
like to record my appreciation for the involvement and commitment of those 
involved. 
 

17. Action plan 
 

Head of Internal Audit’s opinion statement for 2021/22 identified a number of 
weaknesses. The Council has taken action to address these 
recommendations and an action plan is attached as Appendix 1. 
 
The outstanding actions identified from previous Internal Audit Annual Reports 
are included as Appendix 2. 
 
In relation to the financial year 2021-2022 the Appointed Auditor has issued a 
Statutory Recommendations report containing three improvements relating to 
governance around contracting and procurement, and the escalation of 
significant governance concerns. 
 

Page 95

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 2



 

Page 13 

A combined improvement plan has been established and incorporates the 
Statutory Recommendations report, Internal Audit actions, and the Financial 
Management Code actions.  This plan will be monitored by the Senior 
Management Team and reported to the Audit and Governance Committee. 
 
18. Impacts of COVID-19 
 
Covid has continued to have an impact and the authority has adjusted to the 
significant disruption to staffing across services and functions.   
 
The business continuity plans are kept under review to ensure that essential 
services continued to be delivered to our residents.  A number of measures 
introduced to ensure the safety of staff, Members and customers, whilst 
maintaining service delivery continue, e.g. flexible ways of working virtual 
meetings where appropriate and social distancing and health and safety 
measures continue as appropriate to guidance at the time. 
 
The Local Authority and Police and Crime Commissioner elections were 
postponed under the Coronavirus Act 2020 and took place in May 2021. 
 
The Annual Meeting for 2021 was brought forward to April to enable it to be 
held remotely whilst regulations still permitted. Since the 7 May 2021 
arrangements have been made for a return to meetings in a physical venue 
adhering to COVID-19 requirements.  Arrangements continue to be reviewed 
in line with Covid guidance. 
 
The Chief Executive has delegated powers to take such action on behalf of 
the Council as appears to them necessary in circumstances that prevent 
obtaining the necessary authority from an appropriate committee following 
consultation with the Leader of the Council, as set out in the Council’s 
constitution. 
 
In order to deliver the local authority elements of the national COVID-19 
support package of business grants, business rate reliefs and hardship relief, 
it was necessary to temporarily reassign resources and defer other priorities 
to ensure an effective response was achieved.  More details of the authority’s 
response can be found in the Growing Forward reports presented to the 
Executive Committee in March 2021 and 2022. 
 
19. Governance and Assurance Summary 
 
The Council uses its Annual Governance Statement to demonstrate that it has 
sound decision making processes in place and governance arrangements that 
are fit for purpose. 
 
The assurance reports received from the Head of Internal Audit provide an 
indicator of the effectiveness of the Council’s governance arrangements.  His 
opinion is that the Council has a number of basically sound systems of control 
in place, although there are certain weaknesses which put some of the system 
objectives at risk. 

Page 96

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 2



 

Page 14 

 
The Council has reviewed arrangements to further improve and enhance its 
governance arrangements.  
 
These include a comprehensive review of the Council’s constitution which 
clarified and affirmed the extent of officer delegation and reviewed the 
contract standing orders. We have recruited to a new Programme Manager 
post, and have appointed external consultants to support the Council in 
delivering major projects and service improvements. 
 
We are engaging with other Local Authorities and the private sector to deliver 
a project management approach to contract tendering.   
 
In August 2021 the Council engaged STAR Procurement to perform an in-

depth review of procurement rules including contract standing orders, training 

and ongoing practical assistance with frameworks and tenders. The outcomes 

were delivered following fact finding, consultation with services, consultation 

with Senior Management Team, consultation with Internal Audit, and the 

application of best practice. 

 

The revised Procurement Strategy was adopted by the Council on the 12 

January 2022; this replicates the priorities and themes within the National 

Procurement Strategy for Local Government and links to the Council Plan and 

the Morecambe Bay Anchor Collaborative. 

 

The other documents reset and created were: 

 

 Contract Standing Orders 

 Procurement Checklist 

 Exemption Request Form 

 Extension Request Form 

 Modification Request Form 

 Services Contract (template) 

 Supply of Goods Agreement (template) 

 Terms and Conditions 

 Procurement Handbook 

 

The framework designed by STAR Procurement was implemented from 1 

April 2022 which followed officer training throughout March 2022. 

 

The Council has undergone a staff restructure which is intended to strengthen 
governance. 
 
 

Page 97

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 2



 

Page 15 

Certification Statement  
 
 
The review of the governance arrangements for the financial year 2021/22 
has highlighted areas for improvement, and the work to support this has yet to 
be tested, but continue to be developed.  We believe that the existing 
arrangements now in place are fit for purpose and are adequate to meet the 
Council’s corporate aims.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Councillor Mrs A Burns              S Plum 
Chair of the Audit and Governance Committee            Chief Executive  
 

Page 98

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 2



 

Page 16 

Appendix 1 

 

Actions Raised from 2021-2022 

 

The Head of internal Audit’s opinion statement for 2021/21 identified a number of weaknesses in internal control. The Council has 
produced an action plan to consider and address these issues: 
 

Audit Area Action Officer - Completion 

Recruitment 

Review Policy of References  
 
Review of HR recruitment related procedures 
 
 
 

HR Manager 

Accounts Receivable 

Ensuring recover processes are resumed and review of instalments spreadsheet 
to ensure still appropriate and being adhered to 
 
Review of invoice processing and monitoring any reasons for dispute 
 
Review of processes to complete previous audit recommendations. 
 
 

Financial Services 
Manager 

P
age 99

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 2



 

Page 17 

Audit Area Action Officer - Completion 

Covid Risk 
Assessment 

Review of Control Measures and risk assessments 

Comment: Since this review was undertaken, health and safety has been supported 
through external Health and Safety Advisors who are working with the Head of Asset 
Management in ensuring that appropriate Health and Safety Policies, and procedures 
are in place, and will be monitored through the Health and Safety Management Group 

 

Head of Asset 
Management 
 

Performance 
Management 

Action being taken to review Performance Framework and associated procedures – 
Performance framework for 2018 will be removed from the website and replaced with an 
updated document that reflects current arrangements. 

Recovery Tracker will continue to be published alongside the Growing Forward Report. 

More frequent reporting to Overview & Scrutiny. 

Comment: There will be a new Performance Management Framework developed for 
Westmorland and Furness Council 

September 2022 – 
Director of Resources 
 
 
 
 Director of Resources 
 
 

Insurance 

Contract Management Checklists – process revised and updated procedures circulated  

Copy of Insurance Policies to be filed with Legal Services 

Contract Register available on website and to staff and public 

 

Complete 
July 2022 - Director of 
Resources 
 
 
 
 

P
age 100

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 2



 

Page 18 

Audit Area Action Officer - Completion 

Housing – Staircase 
Cleaning 

The recommendations which relate to matters which cannot be undone are 
noted. 
 
The procurement reset is intended to address audit concerns with regards to 
procurement and this will be tested in future audits. 
 
The contract register will be a standing item on the MT project board to provide 
further measures to ensure that appropriate measures can be taken to ensure 
that any time constraints can be identified and managed appropriately. 
 
 

Procurement and 
Contracts Lead 

P
age 101

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 2



 

Page 19 

Audit Area Action Officer - Completion 

Procurement 

Explanation have been provided as requested. 

Management Team have been aware of auditor concerns from these and previous audits 

and have taken steps to address these.  During 2021, a Procurement Review was 

undertaken by STAR procurement, a local authority shared service who are national 

leaders in procurement and shared services who work with organisations to deliver real 

and tangible transformation and approvements.  The review has led to a revised 

Procurement Strategy adopting in January 2022 and new contract standing orders and 

revised guidance/thresholds which have been implemented since 1 April 2022.  Training 

for procuring officers was provided through March 2022. 

 

The compliance requirements from previous audits were clarified in the procurement 

review/reset of 1 April 2022 and was emphasised as part of the training delivered in 

March 2022. 

A new contract is being prepared for seasonal baskets but this was not completed by the 

December 31st implementation date because the resource was diverted to other 

activities. This has been extended for another season to allow planting for the 

spring/summer baskets and summer barrier baskets until the end of September. This 

was reported to Executive Committee in July 2022 and a tender specification is currently 

being drawn up prior to the tender being issued. 

 

 

Complete  
 
Procurement reset – 
complete 
 
Management Team  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Head of Operations 
Tender outcome - 
September 2022 
 
 
 
 

P
age 102

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 2



 

Page 20 

Audit Area Action Officer - Completion 

Catering and Cleaning 
at the Forum  

The majority of recommendations relate to matters which cannot be undone. 
The procurement reset is intended to address audit concerns with regards to 
procurement and this will be tested in future audits. 
 
Calculation of Annual Commission payment was reviewed and initial action 
completed, and will be kept under review for the period of the contract. 
 
Up to date contract register made available to the public – complete 
 
Ongoing management of Contract 
 

 
 
 
 
Head of Visitor and 
Economy  
 
Procurement and 
Contract Lead 
 
Head of Visitor and 
Economy 

Cleaning of Barrow 
Town Hall and 
Associated Buildings  

 
The majority of recommendations relate to matters which cannot be undone. 
The procurement reset is intended to address audit concerns with regards to 
procurement and this will be tested in future audits. 
 
Ongoing management of contract 
 

 
 
 
Head of Asset 
Management 

 
 

P
age 103

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 2



 

Page 21 

Actions Raised from 2020-21             APPENDIX 2 

 

 

The actions with regard to weaknesses in the documentation of IT procedures had been completed. 

 

Actions Raised from 2019-20         

 

The Head of internal Audit’s opinion statement for 2019/20 identified a number of weaknesses in internal control. The Council 
produced an action plan to address these issues and where actions are not covered by Appendix 1 and remain outstanding these 
are listed below: 
 

Audit Area Action Officer - Completion 

Leasing 
arrangements 

The lease arrangements for Phoenix Business 
Centre are under consideration 

Commercial Estate Manager - The Council is currently 
trying to resolve outstanding issues 

  

 

P
age 104

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 2



 

Page 22 

Appendix 3 

 

FM Code Improvements from 2021-2022 

 

Requirement Improvements 

The responsibilities of the chief finance officer and leadership team 

The leadership team can demonstrate that the services 
provided by the authority provide value for money. 

Improvements are as outlined in the Council’s response to the 
Statutory Recommendations of the appointed auditor. 

The authority complies with the CIPFA Statement on the 
Role of the Chief Finance Officer (CFO) in Local 
Government (2016). 

Recruit to complete the Finance establishment to provide the CFO 
with sufficient and relevant resources. 

Governance and financial management style 

The Council applies CIPFA/SOLACE 
"Delivering Good Governance in Local Government: 
Framework (2016)". 

Where reviews of the corporate governance arrangements reveal 
improvement recommendations, action is planned that will ensure 
effective governance in future. 

The Financial Management style of the Council supports 
financial sustainability. 

Refresher training for officers with financial responsibilities has been 
identified with the outcome of improving financial literacy and 
strengthening the accountability of budget managers and senior 
officers, which supports financial sustainability. 

Medium to long-term financial management 

The authority has carried out a credible and transparent 
financial resilience assessment. 

Make better use of benchmarking and the CIPFA resilience index 
when shaping the MTFP. 

The authority understands its prospects for financial 
sustainability in the longer term and has reported this 
clearly to members. 

Formalise long term financial planning/modelling. 

The authority complies with the CIPFA Prudential Code for The narrative in the capital strategy could be enhanced further with 

P
age 105

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 2



 

Page 23 

Requirement Improvements 

Capital Finance in Local Authorities. linkage to the Strategic Asset Management Plan. 

The authority has a rolling multi-year medium-term financial 
plan consistent with sustainable service plans. 

The Corporate Landlord approach will be implemented from 2022. 

Monitoring financial performance 

The leadership team takes action using reports, enabling it 
to identify and correct emerging risks to its budget strategy 
and financial sustainability. 

The Council is refreshing the service performance collection 
methodology. 

The chief finance officer has personal responsibility for 
ensuring that the statutory accounts provided to the local 
authority comply with the Code of Practice on Local 
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom. 

The Council will prepare the Accounts within statutory deadlines and 
working papers will be produced to a high standard. The Council will 
continue close working with the external auditors to implement any 
audit recommendations. 

The presentation of the final outturn figures and variations 
from budget allow the leadership team to make strategic 
financial decisions. 

The Council will continue to review the format and usefulness of its 
performance reporting. 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 106

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 2



PART ONE 

Barrow Borough Council  

Audit and Governance Committee 

Thursday, 20 October 2022 

Work Plan 2022-2023  

 
 

Report from:   Director of Resources  

Report Author:  Director of Resources 

Wards:    (All Wards); 

 

1.0 Summary and Conclusions  

1.1 The Work Plan sets out the business of the Audit and Governance Committee to 

provide a forward plan and to demonstrate that the terms of reference are 

covered. 

 

1.2  The Work Plan for 2022-2023 is presented for information accompanied by a 

commentary of variations. 

 

2.0  Recommendation  

2.1 It is recommended that the Audit and Governance Committee:-  

 

Note the Work Plan for 2022-2023. 

 

3.0 Background and Proposals  

3.1 The Work Plan is presented at each Audit and Governance Committee meeting  

to provide a forward plan of business and is attached as Appendix 1. 

 

3.2  The Work Plan is intended to demonstrate that the terms of reference are  

covered. 

 

3.3  There are several items to highlight as changed since the previous version of the 

Work Plan presented in July 2022: 

 

 Items 1, 2 and 3 are assigned to the Director of Resources in terms of 

presentation of reports at Committee. 

 

 Item 4 is moved to the December meeting; there are discussions with 

colleagues within the Local Government Reorganisation workstream that the 

Page 107

Agenda Item 10



Director of Resources intends to report to Committee for information.  This 

report is usually entirely reflective but will instead present an update on the 

Council’s Internal Audit service proposals heading into Westmorland and 

Furness Council.  

 

 Item 6, the certification of grants is moved to the December meeting as work 

on the Housing Benefit subsidy claim continues 

 

 Items 7 and 8 are merged and Grant Thornton’s report shall be presented 

when published. 

 

 Item 11 has updated to reflect that the Council’s standards arrangements 

remain in place but there will not be an annual review – a review will be 

carried out of any specific provision as needed. 

 

4.0 Consultation  

4.1 Consultation is not relevant to the recommendation. 

 

5.0  Alternative Options  

5.1 There are no alternative options as the report is presented for noting. 

 

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities  

6.1 In order to be able to deliver Council Plan Priorities the organisation must be  

sound in terms of internal control and governance and the Audit and Governance  

Committee is charged with that role. 

 

7.0 Implications  

7.1 Financial, Resources and Procurement  

7.1.1 There are no financial, resource or procurement implications arising from this 

report. 

 

7.2 Legal  

7.2.1 There are no legal implications arising from this report. 

 

7.3 Local Government Reorganisation 

7.3.1 Local Government Reorganisation has been reflected in the Work Plan. 

 

7.4   Equality and Diversity 
  

7.4.1 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis?  No, this report is for noting. 
 
Risk 

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

Page 108

Agenda Item 10



The Committee does not fulfil 

the terms of reference assigned 

by Full Council. 

The Council cannot 

demonstrate good 

governance. 

Audit and Governance 

Committee work plan. 

 

Contact Officers  

Director of Resources directorsadmin@barrowbc.gov.uk  

 

Appendices Attached to this Report 

Appendix No.  Name of Appendix  

1  Audit and Governance Committee - Work Plan 2022-2023 

  

Page 109

Agenda Item 10

mailto:directorsadmin@barrowbc.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Audit and Governance Committee Work Plan 2022-2023

28-Jul 20-Oct 15-Dec 16-Mar
Audit Activity

1.

To consider the head of Internal Audit’s annual 
report and opinion, and a summary of Internal 
Audit activity (actual and planned) and the level 
of assurance it can give over the Council’s 
corporate governance arrangements.

Head of 
Internal 
Audit/Director 
of Resources

Annual report 

2. To consider summaries of specific Internal 
Audit reports.

Head of 
Internal 
Audit/Director 
of Resources

Final reports    

3. To consider the annual Internal Audit plan.
Head of 
Internal 
Audit/Director 

Annual plan

4.
To consider reports dealing with the 
management and performance of the Internal 
Audit provider.

Director of 
Resources Annual review  

5.
To consider reports from Internal Audit on 
agreed recommendations not implemented 
within reasonable timescale.

Head of 
Internal 
Audit/Director 
of Resources

Progress report    

Annual audit letter  

Certification of grants   

7.  To consider specific reports as agreed with the 
external auditor.

Appointed 
Auditor

Progress report and 
sector update

8.
To comment on the scope and depth of 
external audit work and to ensure it gives value 
for money.

Appointed 
Auditor Annual plan

Meeting

Appointed 
Auditor

Terms of Reference Reporting 
Officer Report

6.

Westmorland and Furness Council 
will prepare 2023-2024 Internal Audit 
plan.

Presented within the Audit Progress 
Report and Sector Update.

Audit Progress Report and Sector 
Update as issued.

 To consider the external auditor’s annual letter 
and relevant reports. P

age 111

A
genda Item

 10
A

ppendix 1



Audit and Governance Committee Work Plan 2022-2023

28-Jul 20-Oct 15-Dec 16-Mar
MeetingTerms of Reference Reporting 

Officer Report

9.  To consider the appointment of the external 
auditor where appropriate.

Director of 
Resources

Appointed auditor report – 
cyclical

10.
To maintain an overview of the Council’s 
Constitution in respect of contract standing 
order, financial regulations.

Director of 
Resources

11.

 To promote and maintain high standards of 
conduct for elected and co-opted members in 
accordance with the relevant provisions of the 
Localism Act.

Head of Legal 
and 
Governance

12.

 To determine whether a member of the 
Council or a member of a town or parish 
council within the Borough has failed to comply 
with the relevant Code of Conduct. Where it 
finds that a failure to comply with the code of 
conduct has occurred to determine what action, 
if any, to take.

Head of Legal 
and 
Governance

13. To determine any request for a dispensation 
under s.33 of the Localism Act 2011.

Head of Legal 
and 
Governance

14.
 To review any issue referred to it by the Chief 
Executive, Director of Resources, Monitoring 
Officer or any Council body.

Various

15.
To monitor the effective development and 
operation of risk management and corporate 
governance in the Council. 

Director of 
Resources Risk management    

Replaced with Westmorland and Furness Council constitution 
work.

Report as required unless otherwise determined under 
delegation.

Various as required.

The Council's standards arrangements will remain in force until 
31 March 2023, and the arrangements adopted by Westmorland 
and Furness will continue from 1 April 2023.

No further reports for Barrow Borough 
Council to consider.

Report as required.

Regulatory/Standards Framework

P
age 112

A
genda Item

 10
A

ppendix 1



Audit and Governance Committee Work Plan 2022-2023

28-Jul 20-Oct 15-Dec 16-Mar
MeetingTerms of Reference Reporting 

Officer Report

Director of 
Resources Annual review (antifraud)

Complaints and 
compliments report 

Local Government 
Ombudsman letter 

Draft Annual Governance 
Statement 

Final Annual Governance 
Statement (included with 
Statement of Accounts)



Head of Legal 
and 
Governance

Code of corporate 
governance 

Director of 
Resources

Restricted assurance 
monitoring

Best practice review

Code of conduct and 
guidance

18.

To consider the Council’s arrangement for 
corporate governance and agreeing necessary 
actions to ensure compliance with best 
practice.

Report as required.

Incorporated in Annual Governance 
Statement.

Replaced with Westmorland and 
Furness Council anitfraud policies.

19.
To consider the Council’s compliance with its 
own and other published standards and 
controls.

Head of Legal 
and 
Governance

16.
To monitor Council policies on the antifraud 
and anti-corruption strategy and the Council’s 
complaints process. Head of Legal 

and 
Governance

17.
To approve the production of the authority’s 
Annual Governance Statement and to 
recommend its adoption.

Head of Legal 
and 
Governance

P
age 113

A
genda Item

 10
A

ppendix 1



Audit and Governance Committee Work Plan 2022-2023

28-Jul 20-Oct 15-Dec 16-Mar
MeetingTerms of Reference Reporting 

Officer Report

Going concern 

Accounting policies 

Assurance arrangements 

Statement of Accounts 
with Annual Governance 
Statement



Letter of representation 

21.
To consider the external auditor’s report to 
those charged with governance on issues 
arising from the audit of the accounts.

Appointed 
Auditor Audit findings report 

22. To note the Audit and Governance Committee 
terms of reference.

Director of 
Resources Terms of reference 

23. To note the Audit and Governance Committee 
work plan.

Director of 
Resources Work plan   

24. To note the External Audit fees. Director of 
Resources Audit fees 

25. To consider the effectiveness of the Audit and 
Governance Committee.

Director of 
Resources Annual review 

To review and approve the annual Statement 
of Accounts. Specifically, to consider whether 
appropriate accounting policies have been 
followed and whether there are concerns 
arising from the financial statements or from 
the audit that need to be brought to the 
attention of the Council.

Director of 
Resources

Accounts

Others

20.

P
age 114

A
genda Item

 10
A

ppendix 1



Audit and Governance Committee Work Plan 2022-2023

28-Jul 20-Oct 15-Dec 16-Mar
MeetingTerms of Reference Reporting 

Officer Report

26. Review of Borough and Parish councillor 
registers of interests

Head of Legal 
and 
Governance

Annual report 

27. Review of employee gifts and hospitality
Head of Legal 
and 
Governance

Annual report 

28.  Annual report of the Chair of the Audit and 
Governance Committee Various Annual report 

P
age 115

A
genda Item

 10
A

ppendix 1



T
his page is intentionally left blank



PART ONE 

Barrow Borough Council  

Audit and Governance Committee 

20 October 2022 

Borough and Parish/Town Councillor Registers of 

Disclosable Pecuniary Interests and Other Registrable 

Interests 

 
 

Report from:   Head of Legal and Governance and Monitoring 

Officer 

Report Author:  Debbie Storr 

Wards:    Not applicable 

 

1.0  Summary and Conclusions  

1.1 That the Audit and Governance Committee reviews the register of disclosable 

pecuniary interests and other registrable interests for Borough and Parish/Town 

Council members and Co-optees to September 2022. 

 

2.0  Recommendation  

2.1 Audit and Governance Committee is asked to note the review of the register 

of interests. 

 

3.0 Background and Proposals  

3.1 Under the Localism Act 2011 members are required to disclose those disclosable 

pecuniary interests as specified in regulations and any other interests which the 

Council should decide should be registered in the interests form. 

 

3.2 The Borough Council resolved on 17 July 2012 to adopt the other registrable 

interests as detailed in the register of interests form, and the Monitoring Officer is 

required to maintain the register and ensure that it is available for inspection, as 

required by the Act, which also includes being available on the Council’s website.  

When looking at Councillors’ details on the website there are links to the register 

of interests form, and to those of the Parish/Town Councillors. 

 

3.3 Other Registrable Interests were updated in January 2022 to include “unpaid 

directorships” following revisions to the code of conduct as a result of a review of 

the Council’s standards arrangements and consideration of a new code which was 

Page 117

Agenda Item 11



also adopted in January 2022.  Following adoption members were asked by email 

on 1 February to ensure that any unpaid directorships were registered.  

 

3.3 The Council holds elections every four years (last ordinary elections held May 

2019 and two by elections in 2021).  All Members have been asked to confirm that 

their registers of interests are up to date.  This has included updating registers 

where Members were elected to the new Westmorland and Furness Council 

following elections to the new authority in May 2022.  Further emails were sent to 

all Members including on 9 June 2022, 9 September 2022 and 27th September 

2022  to ensure that their interests forms were up to date to reflect any changes.  

The attached Appendix 1 shows the returns made to those emails and any update 

will be provided at the meeting. 

 

3.4 Guidance has been provided around the code and declarations and training on the 

code was provided to members in February 2021. 

 

3.5 Members who may have a DPI in matters coming before the Council continue to 

have a dispensation for matters relating to Local Government Reform and 

devolution. 

 

3.6 Co-optees on the Housing Forum have also completed their interests forms, and 

the Monitoring Officer is maintaining a register of interests for those members 

sitting on the Brilliant Barrow Board and those members have also been asked to 

confirm that their registers are up to date. 

 

3.7 The review has had regard to the Internal Audit Final Report 21-22 on declaration 

of interests and hospitality which was reported to Audit and Governance 

Committee in April 2022.  One of the recommendations arising was that “reviews 

of declarations of Interests/Gifts and Hospitality reported to members include the 

outcome of the review rather than simply a notification it has occurred”.  There 

have been no concerns in previous reviews and it is considered that members are 

registering interests appropriately, and are continuing to update their forms as 

changes occur, in addition to being requested annually in June of each year to 

check that they are up to date. 

 

3.8 Members are requested to note the annual review of the registers. 

 

4.0 Consultation  

4.1 All members (including Parish/Town Councillors) were asked by email on 9 June 

2022 to ensure that their registers of interest were complete and up to date. Further 

reminders have been sent and an update will be provided to the meeting. 

 

4.2  An email was sent to all Co-Optees on 9 June 2022 asking them to confirm their 

register of interests were up to date.  Brilliant Barrow Board members have also 

been asked to ensure that their registers are up to date. 

 

  

Page 118

Agenda Item 11



5.0  Alternative Options  

5.1 There are no alternative options, the report is to note the outcome of the review. 

 

 

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities  

6.1 Good governance links to the achievement of Council priorities and objectives. 

 

7.0 Implications  

7.1 Financial, Resources and Procurement  

7.1.1 Not applicable 

 

7.2 Legal  

7.2.1 Members are required to ensure that they comply with the code of conduct and 

declare their disclosable pecuniary interests as appropriate.  Failure to comply with 

the legislation with regards to disclosure and participation at meetings on 

disclosable pecuniary interests (within any appropriate dispensation) is a criminal 

offence. 

 

7.3 Local Government Reorganisation 

7.3.1 Updates to registers have had regard to the new council elections. 

 

7.4  Equality and Diversity 
  

7.4.1 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? No – not applicable 
 
Risk 

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

Registers not maintained or 

incomplete 

Members could be in 

breach of the 

code/legislation 

Regular monitoring of 

the code and sufficient 

training and awareness 

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

Members fail to make 

appropriate declarations 

Risk of prosecution for 

failure to declare or 

participate in 

proceedings where they 

have a DPI 

Ensure appropriate 

declarations are made 

and registers up to date 

and training provided 

Contact Officers  

dstorr@barrowbc.gov.uk 

Background Documents Available 

Name of Background document  Where it is available  

1 Registers of Interests for 

Borough and Parish Councillors 

 

www.barrowbc.gov.uk 

Page 119

Agenda Item 11



 

APPENDIX 1 

 
Annual Review – Responses received as at 4.10.22 

26 out of 35 Borough Councillors have responded to the annual review 

8 out of 8 Askam & Ireleth Parish Councillors have responded 

4 out of 8 Dalton with Newton Town Councillors have responded 

5 out of 5 Lindal and Marton Parish Councillors have responded 

1 out of 3 Tenant Representatives have responded 

 

Councillors were asked to confirm whether they had any changes or not.  

If no changes were required then the form on the web is update with ‘Reviewed DD.MM.YY – 

No changes required’ and if changes are made ‘Reviewed and updated DD.MM.YY’. 

Page 120

Agenda Item 11



PART ONE 

Barrow Borough Council  

Audit and Governance Committee 

20 October 2022 

Employee Register of Gifts and Hospitality 
 

   

Report from:   Monitoring Officer 

Report Author:  Debbie Storr 

Wards:    None 

 

1.0  Summary and Conclusions  

1.1  This report is presented to review the register of interests and gifts and hospitality 

for employees for the period September 2021 to September 2022. 

 

2.0  Recommendation  

          It is recommended that the Committee notes the report 

 

3.0 Background and Proposals  

3.1 The Officer’s code of conduct for Barrow Borough Council Employees provides 

guidance on interests and gifts and hospitality.  The Council has Hospitality 

Guidance which provides information as to how employees should treat any offers 

of gifts and hospitality. 

 

3.2 There is a standard corporate form and offers of hospitality that are declined 

should also be included in any declarations. 

 

3.3 In considering this review the recommendations of internal audit through its final 

report on declaration of interests and hospitality which was reported to Committee 

in March 2022 have been taken on board. 

 

3.4 The Committee has an overview of the Employee gifts and hospitality and reviews 

on an annual basis.  Members will be provided with an update of declarations at 

the meeting. 

 

3.5 The review has concluded that there have been no substantial interests declared 

None of the items on the register appear to be of significant value therefore it was 

not against the policy for officers to accept.   

 

  

Page 121

Agenda Item 12



4.0 Consultation  

 Management Group have been asked to confirm that the register is up to date. In 

the last twelve months, no significant gifts or hospitality has been received and the 

Monitoring Officer has requested an update of any formal declarations. An update 

will be provided at the meeting. 

 

5.0  Alternative Options  

5.1 There are no alternative options.  The annual review forms part of the Committee’s 

work programme. 

 

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities  

6.1 Good governance underpins the objectives of the Council Plan 

 

7.0 Implications  

Financial, Resources and Procurement  

7.1.1 Not applicable 

 

Legal  

7.1.2 Under the Council’s procedures employees are required to declare appropriate 

interests and any gifts and hospitality received. 

.  
Equality and Diversity  

7.2 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? No – not applicable 
 
Risk 

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

Register is not maintained or 

incomplete 

Officers could be in 

breach of code of 

conduct  

Regular monitoring and 

sufficient awareness and 

training 

 

Contact Officers  

dstorr@barrowbc.gov.uk 

 

Appendices Attached to this Report  

None 

Page 122

Agenda Item 12



PART ONE 

Barrow Borough Council  

Audit and Governance Committee  

20th October, 2022 

Report on Compliments, Customer Feedback and 

Complaints received during 2021/22 
 

   

Report from:   Monitoring Officer 

Report Author:  Debbie Storr 

Wards:    All 

 

1.0  Summary and Conclusions  

1.1  Feedback is very important to help us better understand the customer’s needs 

and concerns and can help identify possible avenues of service improvement.  

This report presents an update to Members on the number of complaints and 

compliments received during 2021/22 (April, 2021 – March, 2022). 

 

2.0  Recommendation  

 It is recommended that the Audit and Governance Committee receive 

and note the report.  

 

3.0 Background and Proposals  

3.1  It was agreed at the Audit and Governance Committee held on 1st October, 

2020 that regular reports would be presented on compliments, customer 

feedback and complaints.  All complaints and compliments are managed and 

recorded by the Democratic Services Team.  

 

3.3 This report presents an update for the period April, 2021 to March, 2022.  

During the last municipal year there were 57 stage 1 complaints received 

compared to 43 in the previous financial year and 12 appeal stage complaints 

received compared to 8 in the previous financial year. The reasons for the 

complaints are wide and varied and there is no underlying trend in those two 

years.  Appendix 1 shows the complaints received by service area for both 

Stage one and Appeal Stage complaints.  

 

3.4 In terms of response times 64% of complaints received were answered within 

the 10 working day target for stage 1 complaints. The team will continue to 

work with Officers to increase the percentage against the target at stage 1. 

 

Page 123

Agenda Item 13



3.5  Appendix 1 also shows a more detailed breakdown of the stage 1 complaints 

by Department and also by complaint category.  The data collated is useful to 

identify trends and assist with service improvements. No underlying trends 

have been identified during 2021/22. 

 

3.6 During the reporting period 35 compliments were received and noted 

corporately. Details of the service area are shown in Appendix 2.   

  

3.7 Members are asked to receive the report. 

 

4.0 Consultation  

 Not applicable 
 

5.0  Alternative Options  

5.1 There are no alternative options, the report is to note. 

 

6.0 Links to Council Priorities  

6.1 Links to the Council priorities in relation to excellence 

 

7.0 Implications  

Financial, Resources and Procurement  

7.1.1 Not applicable 

 

Legal  

7.1.2 Not applicable 

 

Equality and Diversity  

7.2 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? No – not applicable 
 

  

Page 124

Agenda Item 13



Risk 

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

Reputational risk as a result of 

complaints 

The reputation of the 

council is diminished 

Regular review of the 

complaints policy and 

proactive monitoring of 

complaints 

 

Contact Officers  

dstorr@barrowbc.gov.uk/jwhuck@barrowbc.gov.uk 

 

Appendices Attached to this Report – If none, please state none or delete 

section 

Appendix No.  Name of Appendix  

1  Complaints Data 1 April 2020 – 31 March 2021 

2 Details of compliments logged 

 

Background Documents Available 

None  
 

Page 125

Agenda Item 13



This page is intentionally left blank



Katie Pepper, Democratic and Electoral Services Officer 
October 2022 

 

 

BARROW BOROUGH COUNCIL COMPLAINTS STATISTICS 2021/2022 

 

Below is a table showing the total number of complaints received during 2021/22 (April, 

2021– March, 2022). 

Complaints Table 2021/2022 

 Quarter 1 
1st Apr 2021 – 
30th June 2021 

Quarter 2 
1st July 2021 
– 30th Sept 

2021 

Quarter 3 
1st Oct 2021 – 
31st Dec 2021 

Quarter 4 
1st Jan 2022 – 
31st Mar 2022 

Total 
Number of 

Stage 1 
Complaints 

 
4 

 
18 

 
15 

 
20 

Total 
Number of 

Appeal 
Complaints 

 
0 

 
5 

 
2 

 
5 

 

 

A table showing the number of complaints received in 2020/21 during the same period 

for comparison is as follows:- 

Comparison Table 2020/2021 

 Quarter 1 
1st  Apr 2020– 
30th June 2020 

Quarter 2 
1st July 2020 
– 30th Sept 

2020 

Quarter 3 
1st Oct 2020 – 
31st Dec 2020 

Quarter 4 
1st Jan 2021 – 
31st Mar 2021 

Total 
Number of 

Stage 1 
Complaints 

 
11 

 
14 

 
8 

 
11 

Total 
Number of 

Stage 2 
Complaint 

 
2 

 
2 

 
1 

 
2 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 127

Agenda Item 13
Appendix 1



Katie Pepper, Democratic and Electoral Services Officer 
October 2022 

 

STAGE 1 COMPLAINTS BY DEPARTMENT 2021/2022 

 

Department Total 
Number of 
Complaints 

Upheld Not 
Upheld 

Partly 
Upheld 

Ongoing Rejected/ 
Withdrawn 

Streetcare 18 15 2 1 0 0 

Council Tax  14 3 6 5 0 0 

Housing 4 1 3 0 0 0 

Forum 1 1 0 0 0 0 

Parking 1 1 0 0 0 0 

Planning 4  4  0 0 

Public 
Protection 

5 1 3 1 0 0 

Revs and 
Bens 

9 3 6 0 0 0 

Grants 1 0 1 0 0 0 

TOTALS 57 25 25 7 0 0 

 

 

PERCENTAGE OF STAGE 1 COMPLAINTS UPHELD, NOT 

UPHELD, PARTLY UPHELD, ONGOING OR 

REJECTED/WITHDRAWN 

 

 

 

 

 

Upheld
44%

Not Upheld
44%

Partly 
Upheld

12%

Ongoing
0%

Rejected/ 
Withdrawn

0%

Stage 1 2021/22

Page 128

Agenda Item 13
Appendix 1



Katie Pepper, Democratic and Electoral Services Officer 
October 2022 

 

APPEAL STAGE COMPLAINTS BY DEPARTMENT 2021/2022  

 

Department Total 
Number of 
Complaints 

Upheld Not 
Upheld 

Partly 
Upheld 

Ongoing Rejected/ 
Withdrawn 

Council Tax 4 2 2 0 0 0 

Streetcare 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Housing 2 0 2 0 0 0 

Planning 1 0 1 0 0 0 

Revs and 
Bens 

3 0 3 0 0 0 

Public 
Protection 

1 0 1 0 0 0 

Grants 1 0 1 0 0 0 

TOTAL 12 2 10 0 0 0 

 

 

PERCENTAGE OF APPEAL STAGE COMPLAINTS UPHELD, 

NOT UPHELD, PARTLY UPHELD, ONGOING OR 

REJECTED/WITHDRAWN 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Upheld
17%

Not Upheld
83%

Partly Upheld
0%

Ongoing
0%

Rejected/ 
Withdrawn

0%

Appeal Stage 
2021/22

Page 129

Agenda Item 13
Appendix 1



This page is intentionally left blank



COMPLIMENTS BY DEPARTMENT 2021/2022 

 

Below is a table showing the total number of compliments received during 2021/22 (April, 2021 – 

March, 2022). 

Compliments Table 2021/2022 

Department Total Number of Compliments 

Housing 18 

Streetcare 10 

Gardens/Landscapes/Parks 4 

Dock Museum 1 

Revs and Bens 2 

Total 35 

 

PERCENTAGE OF COMPLIMENTS 

 

 

 

 

 

Housing
51%

Streetcare
29%

Gardens/Landscapes
/Parks
11%

Dock Museum
3%

Revs and Bens
6%

Compliments 2021/22

Page 131

Agenda Item 13
Appendix 2



This page is intentionally left blank



PART ONE 

Barrow Borough Council  

Audit and Governance Committee 

20 October 2022 

Local Government Ombudsman Annual Report 2021/22 

 
 

Report from:   Monitoring Officer 

Report Author:  Jon Huck 

Wards:    Not applicable 

 

1.0  Summary and Conclusions  

1.1  That the Audit and Governance Committee receive the Local Government 

Ombudsman Annual Report 2021/22. 

2.0  Recommendation  

2.1.1  It is recommended that the Audit and Governance Committee receive and 

note the report. 

3.0 Background and Proposals  

3.1 Attached to this report Members will find a copy of the Local Government 

Ombudsman Annual Review letter 2021/22 (Appendix 1). The outcomes of the 

complaints received are broken down into total numbers received (Appendix 2), 

complaints decided to undertake an investigation and the number upheld.  

 

3.2  During this reporting period 50% of the complaints that the Local Government 

Ombudsman investigated were upheld, this compares to an average of 51% in 

similar organisations. One decision was upheld and the statistics had been based 

on a total of 2 investigations for the period between 1st April 2021 and 31st March 

2022.  

  

3.3  For 2021/22 one compliance outcome with Ombudsman recommendations was 

made for the period 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022. The compliance with the 

Ombudsman recommendations rate for this period is reported as 100%. The 

annual review findings are also available on the Local Government Ombudsman 

website.  

 

3.4  The Council operates a two stage complaints process before matters are referred 

to the LGO. 
 

Page 133

Agenda Item 14



4.0 Consultation  

 Not applicable. 

 

5.0  Alternative Options  

5.1 There are no alternative options, the report is to note. 

 

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities  

6.1 Good governance underpins delivery of the Council’s priorities. 

 

7.0 Implications  

Financial, Resources and Procurement  

7.1.1 Not applicable. 

 

Legal  

7.1.2 No legal issues identified. 

 

Equality and Diversity  

7.2 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? No – Not applicable. 
 
Risk 

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

Reputational risk as a result of 

adverse complaints 

The reputation of the 

council is diminished 

Regular review of the 

complaints policy 

Contact Officers  

jwhuck@barrowbc.gov.uk 

 

Appendices Attached to this Report – If none, please state none or delete section 

Appendix No.  Name of Appendix  

1  Local Government Ombudsman Annual Review Letter 

2  Local Government Ombudsman Annual Review – appendix 

complaints received, decided and complaints compliance 

 

Background Documents Available 

None  
 

Page 134

Agenda Item 14



 

 

 

 

20 July 2022 
 
By email 
 
Ms Plum 
Executive Director 
Barrow-in-Furness Borough Council 
 
 
Dear Ms Plum 
 
Annual Review letter 2022 
 
I write to you with your annual summary of complaint statistics from the Local Government and 

Social Care Ombudsman for the year ending 31 March 2022. The information offers valuable 

insight about your organisation’s approach to complaints. As such, I have sought to share this 

letter with the Leader of your Council and Chair of the appropriate Scrutiny Committee, to 

encourage effective ownership and oversight of complaint outcomes, which offer such valuable 

opportunities to learn and improve.  

Complaint statistics 

Our statistics focus on three key areas that help to assess your organisation’s commitment to 

putting things right when they go wrong: 

Complaints upheld - We uphold complaints when we find fault in an organisation’s actions, 

including where the organisation accepted fault before we investigated. We include the total 

number of investigations completed to provide important context for the statistic. 

Compliance with recommendations - We recommend ways for organisations to put things right 

when faults have caused injustice and monitor their compliance with our recommendations. 

Failure to comply is rare and a compliance rate below 100% is a cause for concern.  

Satisfactory remedy provided by the authority - In these cases, the organisation upheld the 

complaint and we agreed with how it offered to put things right. We encourage the early resolution 

of complaints and credit organisations that accept fault and find appropriate ways to put things 

right.  

Finally, we compare the three key annual statistics for your organisation with similar authorities to 

provide an average marker of performance. We do this for County Councils, District Councils, 

Metropolitan Boroughs, Unitary Councils, and London Boroughs. 

Page 135

Agenda Item 14
Appendix 1



Your annual data, and a copy of this letter, will be uploaded to our interactive map,                   

Your council’s performance, on 27 July 2022. This useful tool places all our data and information 

about councils in one place. You can find the detail of the decisions we have made about your 

Council, read the public reports we have issued, and view the service improvements your Council 

has agreed to make as a result of our investigations, as well as previous annual review letters.  

Supporting complaint and service improvement 

I know your organisation, like ours, will have been through a period of adaptation as the 

restrictions imposed by the pandemic lifted. While some pre-pandemic practices returned, many 

new ways of working are here to stay. It is my continued view that complaint functions have been 

under-resourced in recent years, a trend only exacerbated by the challenges of the pandemic. 

Through the lens of this recent upheaval and adjustment, I urge you to consider how your 

organisation prioritises complaints, particularly in terms of capacity and visibility. Properly 

resourced complaint functions that are well-connected and valued by service areas, management 

teams and elected members are capable of providing valuable insight about an organisation’s 

performance, detecting early warning signs of problems and offering opportunities to improve 

service delivery. 

I want to support your organisation to harness the value of complaints and we continue to develop 

our programme of support. Significantly, we are working in partnership with the Housing 

Ombudsman Service to develop a joint complaint handling code. We are aiming to consolidate our 

approaches and therefore simplify guidance to enable organisations to provide an effective, quality 

response to each and every complaint. We will keep you informed as this work develops, and 

expect that, once launched, we will assess your compliance with the code during our 

investigations and report your performance via this letter. 

An already established tool we have for supporting improvements in local complaint handling is 

our successful training programme. We adapted our courses during the Covid-19 pandemic to an 

online format and successfully delivered 122 online workshops during the year, reaching more 

than 1,600 people. To find out more visit www.lgo.org.uk/training. 

 

Yours sincerely, 

 

 
Michael King 

Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman 

Chair, Commission for Local Administration in England

Page 136

Agenda Item 14
Appendix 1

https://www.lgo.org.uk/your-councils-performance
http://www.lgo.org.uk/training


Barrow-in-Furness Borough Council 

For the period ending: 31/03/22  

                                                             

 

 

 

 

Complaints upheld 

  

50% of complaints we 
investigated were upheld. 

This compares to an average of 
51% in similar organisations. 

 
 

1                          
upheld decision 

 
Statistics are based on a total of 2 

investigations for the period 
between 1 April 2021 to 31 March 

2022 

 

Compliance with Ombudsman recommendations 

 

No recommendations were due for compliance in this period 

 

 

Satisfactory remedy provided by the organisation 

  

In 0% of upheld cases we found 
the organisation had provided a 
satisfactory remedy before the 
complaint reached the 
Ombudsman.  

This compares to an average of 
20% in similar organisations. 

 

0                      
satisfactory remedy decisions 

 

Statistics are based on a total of 1 

upheld decision for the period 
between 1 April 2021 to 31 March 

2022 

 

50% 

0% 

Page 137

Agenda Item 14
Appendix 1



This page is intentionally left blank



Reference Authority

21002622 Barrow-in-Furness Borough Council

20009461 Barrow-in-Furness Borough Council

21003216 Barrow-in-Furness Borough Council

21006031 Barrow-in-Furness Borough Council

21008056 Barrow-in-Furness Borough Council

21008057 Barrow-in-Furness Borough Council

21017935 Barrow-in-Furness Borough Council

Page 139

Agenda Item 14
Appendix 2



Category Received

Benefits & Tax 25/05/21

Planning & Development 28/10/21

Benefits & Tax 04/06/21

Benefits & Tax 02/08/21

Benefits & Tax 03/09/21

Planning & Development 09/03/22

Benefits & Tax 07/03/22

Page 140

Agenda Item 14
Appendix 2



PART ONE 

Barrow Borough Council  

Audit and Governance Committee 

Thursday, 20 October 2022 

Risk Management  

 
 

Report from:   Director of Resources  

Report Author:  Director of Resources 

Wards:    (All Wards); 

 

1.0  Summary and Conclusions  

1.1 The Council’s Risk Management arrangements are currently under review with 

expert support engaged. 

 

1.2 The corporate risk register and high-level operational risk register will be 

reviewed and reformatted to align with best practice. 

 

1.3 The risk registers remain live during the review. 

 

1.4 It is anticipated that the review will result in a revised policy, reformatted register, 

and training provision. 

 

2.0  Recommendation  

2.1 It is recommended that the Audit and Governance Committee:-  

 

Note the update in respect of the Council’s risk management 

arrangements. 

 

3.0 Background and Proposals  

3.1 The Council’s risk management policy was due to be reviewed in September 

2022; the risk registers are reviewed quarterly, and those activities are presented 

to the Audit and Governance Committee. 

 

3.2 External expertise has been engaged by the Council to review the policy, the 

format of the risk register to align to current best practice, and to provide tailored 

training. 

 

Page 141

Agenda Item 15



3.3 The risk registers (as attached at Appendix 1) are currently circulating wider to 

the officers on the Corporate Programme Board for review; this Board receives 

major/significant projects, contracts, and procurement matters.  

 

3.4 The Senior Management Team have requested that the Corporate Programme 

Board consider that any risk updates reflect the Board’s business or terms of 

reference. 

 

3.5 The Auditor’s Annual Report highlighted risk management as an area for 

improvement and outlined aspects of the risk register to expand – direction of 

travel, target risk score, future actions required, sources of risk and assurance, 

and dates of the last and next review. 

 

3.6 The current risk register format will be reviewed and the processes strengthened 

to recognise and monitor risks. 

 

3.7 To illustrate the benefit of expanding the content of the register - the Council 

holds separate risk registers for the major funding programmes, such as Town 

Deal.  Risks are recognised at both project level and programme level.  The 

delivery of major funding programmes is a corporate risk and referencing the 

Town Deal risk register as a source brings assurance into a single repository that 

will ensure a consistent approach/appetite across the Council. 

 

3.8 The outcome of the review will be reported to the Executive Committee for 

approval and to the Audit and Governance Committee to provide assurance to 

those charged with governance. 

 

4.0 Consultation  

4.1 The consultation is an internal process to ensure that all significant risks to the 

Council are recorded, measured, and treat in accordance with the policy. 

 

5.0  Alternative Options  

5.1 There are no alternatives to present. 

 

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities  

6.1 In order to be able to deliver Council Plan Priorities the organisation must be  

aware of the risks facing service and strategic delivery to manage and  

mitigate those. 

 

7.0 Implications  

7.1 Financial, Resources and Procurement  

7.1.1 There are no financial, resource or procurement implications arising from this 

report. 

 

7.2 Legal  

Page 142

Agenda Item 15



7.2.1 There are no legal implications arising from this report. 

 

7.3 Local Government Reorganisation 

7.3.1 The risk registers will be incorporated in the risk management processes within 

Westmorland and Furness Council. 

 

7.4   Equality and Diversity 
  

7.4.1 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis?  No, there are no individual 
impacted by the recommendation. 

 
Risk 

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

Risk occurs or materialises. Unforeseen events  

disrupt service delivery  

and achievement of the  

Council’s plans and  

priorities. 

Establish a risk  

management policy and  

monitor significant risks. 

 

Contact Officers  

Director of Resources directorsadmin@barrowbc.gov.uk  

 

Appendices Attached to this Report 

Appendix No. Name of Appendix 

1 Risk Registers July 2022 

 

Page 143

Agenda Item 15

mailto:directorsadmin@barrowbc.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Corporate and Operational Risk Register                July 2022 

Page 1 
 

 Corporate Risk Register 
 

Reference  
Risk number/year/version Inherit Risk    Mitigating 

Risk  

Ref. Risks 

Im
pa

ct
 

Li
ke

lih
oo

d 

Sc
or

e 

 
 

Potential consequences Existing control/mitigation 

Im
pa

ct
 

Li
ke

lih
oo

d 

Sc
or

e 

Lead Officer 

1/21/1 

Significant changes 
arising from Central 
Government 
Legislation. 

5 5 25 

 Regulatory changes. 
 Changes to service delivery. 
 Service performance implications. 
 Resource requirements. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Awareness 
 Monitoring Officer will receive notification. 
 Horizon scanning by Management Team and Heads of Service. 
 Membership of professional and local government bodies aids 

horizon scanning. 
Actions 
 Management Team will determine actions to be taken. 
 Create detailed project plans to manage implementation of 

changes. 
 Adopt a management of change approach to mitigate against 

significant impact to the Council and its staff. 
 Heads of Service will be responsible for implementing changes 

through service planning. 
 Financial and workforce planning will be reviewed. 
 External support and specialists will be acquired. 
 The Council will respond to COVID requirements. 

2 5 10 Head of Legal and 
Governance 

2/21/1 
Poor internal and 
external  
communications. 

4 4 16 

 Poorly informed direction of resources and lack of support for 
change. 

 Providing inaccurate information to the public may result in 
processing errors and reworking. 

 Public may have a negative perception of the Council.  
 
 

Awareness 
 Communication strategy on priorities. 
 Internal & external regular publications. 
 Regular staff communication from the Chief Executive. 
 Comments, Compliments and Complaints monitoring will be 

reported to the Senior Management Team and the Audit and 
Governance Committee. 

Actions 
 Regular staff and management meetings. 
 Key stakeholder networks for consultation. 
 Co-ordinated press releases. 
 Develop and maintain website and intranet. 
 Use external communication experts. 
 Recommence staff newsletter. 
 LGR staff newsletter and LGR specific briefings. 

2 2 4 Chief Executive 

3/21/1 

Failure to achieve 
efficiency saving, 
maximise income, or 
performance targets.  

 
5 

 
5 

 
25 

 Greater costs than budgeted for. 
 Reduced income generated. 
 Additional costs to mitigate COVID. 
 Costs of Local Government Reorganisation. 
 Core budget deficit to eliminate. 
 
 
 

Awareness 
 Budgetary control and financial management. 
 Regular reporting to Senior Management Team and Executive 

Committee. 
 Performance and achievements reported to Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee. 
Actions 
 Heightened analysis of budgets and services. 
 Service transformation. 
 Business/service planning. 
 Pursue action to increase income streams. 
 Budget and performance monitoring. 
 Secure additional government support when available. 
 Challenges to hospitality industry may impact on income. 

4 4 16 Director of Resources 

P
age 145

A
genda Item

 15
A

ppendix 1



Corporate and Operational Risk Register                July 2022 

Page 2 
 

Reference  
Risk number/year/version Inherit Risk    Mitigating 

Risk  

Ref. Risks 

Im
pa

ct
 

Li
ke

lih
oo

d 

Sc
or

e 

 
 

Potential consequences Existing control/mitigation 

Im
pa

ct
 

Li
ke

lih
oo

d 

Sc
or

e 

Lead Officer 

4/21/1 
Poor management of 
projects and 
contracts. 

4 5 20 

 Leads to overruns on time or cost and failure to achieve project 
aims.  

 Non-compliance with contract standing orders and financial 
regulations. 

 Potential of fraud and corruption. 
 Irretrievable breakdown in contractor arrangements results in the 

contractor being unable to deliver the outsourced service.  
 

 
 

Awareness  
 Managing contract performance. 
 Contract checklist.  
 Service plans. 
 Monitoring of contractor performance. 
 Regular contractor meetings. 
Actions 
 Project management methodology. 
 External project management support. 
 External contract management support. 
 Contract standing orders and financial regulations. 
 Budgetary control. 
 The Council owns property assets used by contractors. 

3 2 6 Director of People and 
Place  

5/21/1 

Ineffective workforce 
planning or imposed 
reductions in 
resources.  

4 5 20 

 Poor standards of service or disruption to service.   
 Service transformation and commissioning can help build 

resilience. 
 Loss of qualified and knowledgeable staff exposing the Council 

to risk of service failure and legal challenge. 
 
 
 
 
 

Awareness 
 Established suite of HR policies and procedures. 
 Service planning process. 
Actions  
 Organisational review. 
 Organisational development. 
 Training and development. 
 Working environment. 
 Staff surveys/consultation. 
 Agile and flexible working. 
 Business continuity plans. 
 Management training. 
 Appraisals. 
 Service planning. 
 Values and behaviours framework. 

2 3 6 Director of Resources 

6/21/1 Failure to secure and 
manage data.  5 5 25 

 Loss of/ corruption of/ inaccuracy of data, results in disruption to 
services and breaches of security.   

 Major IT physical hardware failure or electronic attack, such as 
viruses, hacking or spyware, causes disruption to services and 
breaches of security.   

 Financial penalties and reputational risk. 
 
 
 
 

Awareness 
 Data breach reporting. 
 IT security monitoring. 
 Awareness of cyber security risks. 
Actions 
 Data protection policy and procedure. 
 Freedom of Information publication scheme. 
 Data retention policy and procedure for archive and disposal. 
 Information breach response plan. 
 Business continuity plan. 
 Disaster recovery plan. 
 IT system security measures and policies. 
 Public Services Network compliance. 
 IT and data online training modules. 
 GDPR training and policy. 
 Review data sharing agreements. 
 Data owner central register. 
 Anti-virus software. 
 Multi-factor authentication. 
 Clear desk strategy. 
 Agile working. 
 Virtual meetings where applicable. 

2 3 6 Director of Resources 
 

P
age 146

A
genda Item

 15
A

ppendix 1



Corporate and Operational Risk Register                July 2022 

Page 3 
 

Reference  
Risk number/year/version Inherit Risk    Mitigating 

Risk  

Ref. Risks 

Im
pa

ct
 

Li
ke

lih
oo

d 

Sc
or

e 

 
 

Potential consequences Existing control/mitigation 

Im
pa

ct
 

Li
ke

lih
oo

d 

Sc
or

e 

Lead Officer 

7/21/1 Economic change. 5 5 25 

 Imposed savings requirements, the financial settlement and 
Fairer Funding Review; Housing Revenue Account restraints; 
reliance on Council Tax and Business Rate income. 

 Changes in service demands and levels of income and 
unsustainable costs for the Council. 

 Rising energy prices – gas, electricity, and fuel. 
 
 
 

Awareness 
 Council wide efficiency measures. 
 Budget monitoring. 
 Debt management policy. 
 Market pressures. 
Actions  
 Financial regulations and contract standing orders. 
 Organisational review to ensure we have the right posts and the 

right skills. 
 Medium Term Financial Plan and savings plan. 
 Political decisions aligned to planned budget strategies and 

available resources. 
 Review of fees and charges. 
 Maintaining and contributing to financial reserves. 
 Strong financial management system. 
 Capital finance risk management. 
 Internal Audit review of fundamental systems. 
 Modelling and monitoring of Business Rates (including appeals) 

and Council Tax. 
 Spending Review technical assessment. 

4 4 16 Director of Resources 

8/21/1 

Natural disaster 
pandemic; malicious 
or accidental 
incident. 

5 4 20 

 Impacts support required by citizens or disrupts existing Council 
services. 

 Impact on Council’s finances. 
 Additional duties imposed by Government impact Council 

resources, business as usual and plans. 
 There is a risk that additional costs and loss of income 

associated with COVID or another event that depletes the 
Council’s reserves to such an extent that the Council is no 
longer financially sustainable. 

 
 
 

Awareness 
 Information provided by external organisations. 
 Communications strategy. 
Actions 
 Emergency plan. 
 Emergency planning exercises. 
 Review business continuity plan. 
 Review of disaster recovery arrangements. 
 Arrangements with partner organisations. 
 Review service arrangements with major contractors. 
 Work with other Cumbria local authorities to lobby Central 

Government to address any costs (COVID for example). 
 Continue to review reserves and Medium Term Finances. 

4 4 16 Chief Executive 

9/21/1 Changes in political 
priorities. 5 4 20 

 Resulting in immediate changes that require additional resource 
to achieve and fail to reflect priorities determined by 
consultation. 

 
 

Actions 
 Financial and workforce planning. 
 Monitoring by Management Team and reporting to the Executive 

Committee. 
 Clear corporate planning and regular performance monitoring. 
 Effective service planning. 
 Respond to national consultation on key policy changes. 
 Membership of the Local Government Association. 
 Member training sessions to reflect changes in priorities. 

5 3 15 Chief Executive 

P
age 147

A
genda Item

 15
A

ppendix 1



Corporate and Operational Risk Register                July 2022 

Page 4 
 

Reference  
Risk number/year/version Inherit Risk    Mitigating 

Risk  

Ref. Risks 

Im
pa

ct
 

Li
ke

lih
oo

d 

Sc
or

e 

 
 

Potential consequences Existing control/mitigation 

Im
pa

ct
 

Li
ke

lih
oo

d 

Sc
or

e 

Lead Officer 

10/21/1 
Major Health and 
Safety incident at the 
Council.  

4 4 16 

 Additional costs for inquiry, disruption to service and possible 
prosecution. 

 Service interruption. 
 Reputational damage. 

Awareness 
 Corporate wide H&S training. 
Actions 
 H&S Management Board. 
 H&S Management Group. 
 H&S procedures, including specific departmental needs. 
 Specialist H&S advisor and expertise. 
 Insurance. 
 Workplace and DSE assessments. 

4 3 12 Chief Executive 

12/20/1 
Failure to deliver the 
objectives of the 
Council plan 

5 3 15 

 Opportunities to deliver improvements for the Borough may be 
missed. 

 Detrimental impact for residents. 
 Unable to attract new businesses and residents to the Borough. 
 

 There is an annual review of progress against the Council Plan 
which is presented to the Executive Committee.  

 The plan contains actions which will deliver the plan’s objectives. 
 Service plans for each department are currently being prepared.  

5 2 10 Chief Executive 

13/21/1 

Climate Change 
adversely impacts 
the Borough and its 
surroundings. 

5 5 25 

 The natural flora, fauna, habitats and features of the area 
deteriorate or are lost. 

 Greenhouse gas emissions are not reduced leaving the Earth's 
temperature to rise faster than is natural. 

 Extreme weather events such as floods and wildfires increase in 
potential. 

 Clean energy opportunities are not promoted. 
 Waste is not reduced, and reuse is not maximised. 

 Climate emergency declared on 16 July 2019 and made a 
commitment to reduce carbon emissions. 

 The Climate Change Working Group created a 5 year Climate 
Change Policy which was agreed at full council on 16 June 
2020. 

 That policy sets out the ambition for the Borough to be net zero 
carbon no later than 2037. 

 The Low Carbon Barrow project will deliver carbon savings and 
establish a framework for continuous and future developments. 

3 3 9 Public Protection 
Manager 

14/21/1 

Local Government 
Reorganisation 
adversely impacts 
public services 
for the Borough. 

4 4 16 

 There is no locality focus and services are not tailored to the 
customer’s needs. 

 Service delivery is impacted by the process of reorganisation. 
Current services are reduced or removed. 

 Investment and development in the Borough is reduced or at 
risk. 

 The gaps identified in public health equality are not 
 addressed. 

 The reorganisation will be managed as a project through 
arrangements agreed between the 7 authorities. 

 A structure to provide governance and an action/implementation 
plan is established and workstreams with lead officers have 
been set up. 

 The workstreams will use existing Cumbria-wide working groups 
and the outputs required will flow from the action/implementation 
plan. 

 An implementation reserve has been established together with a 
financial protocol. 

 The actions will take 7 authorities on the journey to 2 authorities 
whilst ensuring service continuity is maintained in the best 
possible way before and after unitisation. 

 Communication and engagement are identified as a key 
workstream – for customers, stakeholders and especially for 
employees. 

 Service reforms and transitions/savings will be achieved within 
the new authorities – there is too high a risk in significant 
changes pre-unitisation. 

 The Council is undertaking a community governance review for 
Barrow Town. 

2 3 6 Chief Executive 

 

P
age 148

A
genda Item

 15
A

ppendix 1



Corporate and Operational Risk Register                July 2022 

Page 5 
 

Operational Risk Register 

 
Reference  

Risk number/year/version Inherit Risk    Mitigating 
Risk  

Ref Risks 

Im
pa

ct
 

Li
ke

lih
oo

d 

Sc
or

e 

 
 

Potential consequences Existing control/mitigation 

Im
pa

ct
 

Li
ke

lih
oo

d 

Sc
or

e 

Lead Officer 

1/21/1 

Service provision and 
performance affected 
by organisational 
change, industrial 
action and/or staff 
sickness. 

4 5 20 

 Complaints, poor performance and possible further costs. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Awareness 
 Established suite of HR policies and procedures. 
 Organisational culture. 
 Management training. 
Actions  
 Working environment. 
 Staff surveys/consultation. 
 Agile and flexible working. 
 Business continuity plans. 
 Appraisals and professional training. 
 Performance monitoring and management. 
 Clear absence management scheme. 
 Workforce strategy. 

3 4 12 Director of Resources 

2/21/1 

Failure of contractor or 
partners to deliver 
services or meet 
agreed performance 
targets. 

4 5 20 

 Additional costs or failed objectives. 
 
 
 
 

Awareness 
 Project management. 
Actions  
 Procurement processes – including financial aspects/contract 

standing orders/equality standards. 
 Contract process – creation of robust contracts. 
 Accountability and risk ownership documented. 
 Service level agreements. 
 Contract monitoring and remedial action. 
 Trained/skilled staff. 
 Established governance arrangements. 

4 3 12 Director of People and 
Place 

3/21/1 

Potential for fraud, 
corruption, malpractice 
or error, by internal or 
external threats.  In 
additional to 
immediate financial 
loss.  

5 3 12 

 Could harm reputation and lead to additional inquiry costs and 
penalties. 

Awareness 
 Appropriate culture and risk awareness. 
Actions 
 Anti-fraud and corruption strategy. 
 Whistleblowing policy. 
 National Anti-Fraud Network. 
 National Fraud Initiative. 
 Financial regulations and contract standing orders. 
 Codes of conduct. 
 Appropriately trained staff. 
 Segregation of duties. 
 Supported financial management system. 
 Budget monitoring regime. 
 Internal Audit review of systems and controls. 
 Insurance. 
 Annual Governance Statement. 

3 1 3 Director of Resources 

P
age 149

A
genda Item

 15
A

ppendix 1



Corporate and Operational Risk Register                July 2022 

Page 6 
 

Reference  
Risk number/year/version Inherit Risk    Mitigating 

Risk  

Ref Risks 

Im
pa

ct
 

Li
ke

lih
oo

d 

Sc
or

e 

 
 

Potential consequences Existing control/mitigation 

Im
pa

ct
 

Li
ke

lih
oo

d 

Sc
or

e 

Lead Officer 

4/21/1 

Significant 
infrastructure projects 
aren’t properly 
supported. 

5 4 20 

 Projects aren’t delivered in a timely manner. 
 Additional project cost. 
 Loss of reputation. 
 

Awareness 
 Programme Board. 
 Service delivery plan will establish key milestones. 
Actions 
 Regular reviews by the relevant project and programme boards. 
 Review resource and skill requirements. 
 Realign resources with the Council’s priorities. 
 Address skill shortages. 
 Develop project management skills where required. 

5 2 10 Director of People and 
Place 

5/21/1 
Failure to deliver 
repairs services due to 
COVID restrictions. 

5 3 15 

 Unable to carry out repairs and maintenance services to 
housing assets within the borough. 

 Potential increase in disrepair claims from Solicitors. 
 Tenants at risk of harm from defective components and 

maintenance of gas/electric services. 
 Responsive Repairs Contractor may not be able to maintain 

services due to economic downturn. 
 Materials and components are not available from builders 

merchants. 
 
 

 Arrangements in place to ensure adequate trade resources 
remain available to provide 24 hour emergency cover. 

 Covid 19 Risk Assessments and safe systems of work signed 
off and in place, including PPE and tenant questionnaire. 

 Routine (30 day repairs) are presently on hold to reduce build 
up/backlog of overdue orders. 

 Investigating zonal working by housing area to improve 
efficiency, reduce cold calling and increase communications 
with tenants. 

 Additional software purchased from Eviid to reduce number of 
home visits by staff and provide improved live video chat with 
tenants to identify repair priority and diagnosis. 

5 2 10 Deputy Director of 
People and Place 

 

P
age 150

A
genda Item

 15
A

ppendix 1



PART ONE 

Barrow Borough Council  

Audit and Governance Committee 

Thursday, 20 October 2022 

Internal Audit Final Report  

 
 

Report from:   Director of Resources  

Report Author:  Director of Resources  

Wards:    (All Wards); 

 

1.0 Summary and Conclusions  

1.1  Internal Audit performs audits in accordance with the approved Annual Plan 

which is based on a risk assessment of the internal control environment. 

 

1.2  One report has been finalised since the last meeting of the Committee is 

presented in this report. 

 

2.0  Recommendation  

2.1 It is recommended that the Audit and Governance Committee note the 

Internal Audit final report. 

 

3.0 Background and Proposals  

3.1  This report presents the Internal Audit final report completed since the last 

meeting of the Committee. 

 

3.2  The recommendations have been accepted by management. 

 

3.3 The Housing Benefits audit report is attached at Appendix 1 and the audit 

conclusion is substantial assurance with one important issue. 

 

3.4 The important issue relates to the processing of appeals which is a specialist 

area.  The appeals specialist post was vacant for a couple of months, covered by 

other officers, and has subsequently been recruited into. 

 

3.5 The assurance levels are: 

 

 None – control is weak, causing the system to be vulnerable to error and 

abuse.  

Page 151

Agenda Item 16



 Restricted – significant weaknesses have been identified in the system of 

control, which put the system objectives at risk.  

 Substantial – while there is a reasonable system of control, there are 

weaknesses, which may put the system objectives at risk.  

 Unqualified – there is an adequate system of control designed to achieve the 

system objectives. 

 

3.6     The recommendation levels assigned to issues identified are:  
 

 Priority 1 – major issues that Internal Audit considers need to be brought to 

the attention of senior management.  

 Priority 2 – important issues which should be addressed by management in 

their areas of responsibility.  

 Priority 3 – minor issues which provide scope for operational improvement.  

 Previous issues – are issues identified in a previous audit report that have not 

been entirely implemented at the time of this latest audit. 

 

4.0  Consultation  

 

4.1  The Internal Audit annual plan is agreed by the Audit and Governance 

Committee.  

 

5.0  Alternative Options  

 

5.1  There are no alternative options as the report is presented for noting.  

 

6.0  Contribution to Council Plan Priorities  

 

6.1  In order to be able to deliver Council Plan Priorities the organisation must be 

sound in terms of internal control and governance and the Audit and Governance 

Committee is charged with that role.  

 

7.0  Implications  

Financial, Resources and Procurement  

 

7.1  There are no financial, resource or procurement implications arising from this 

report.  

 

Legal  

7.2  There are no legal implications arising from this report.  

 

Equality and Diversity  

7.3 This report is for information.  

 

Local Government Reorganisation  

Page 152

Agenda Item 16



7.4  There are no implications in regard to Local Government Reorganisation.  

 

Risk  

Risk Consequence Controls required 

Internal controls are 

inadequate. 

Compliance cannot be 

demonstrated and 

assurance cannot be 

given. 

Internal Audit annual plan. 

 

Contact Officers 

Director of Resources directorsadmin@barrowbc.gov.uk   

 

Appendices Attached to this Report 

Appendix No.  Name of Appendix  

1  Housing Benefits 22-02 

  

Page 153

Agenda Item 16

mailto:directorsadmin@barrowbc.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 September 2022 

Page 1 

BARROW BOROUGH COUNCIL 

INTERNAL AUDIT FINAL REPORT 22-02 

HOUSING BENEFITS 

 

Executive Summary 

 

Introduction 

 
The Council’s Housing Benefit service was brought back in-house from 1st October 
2018 being located within a portion of the Forum Arts building on Duke Street.  The 
service continues to use Northgate’s iWorld benefits and Anite document 
management systems to process and record claims.   
 
At the time of the audit review, there were over 3,500 live Housing Benefit claims 
being managed by the service; most of the total benefit expenditure of around £18 
million relating to these claims is met by subsidy from Central Government.   
 
 

Audit Objectives 

An audit of this system forms part of the agreed 2022/23 
programme.  The audit objectives were to evaluate and test 
the internal controls over the Housing Benefits system.  The 
scope and objectives of the audit were discussed and 
agreed in advance with the Revenues and Benefits 
Manager. 
 
Audit work included a control evaluation of the system 
design and testing of the operation of key controls.   

 

 

Audit Conclusion – Substantial Assurance 

As a result of the audit we have concluded that while there is a basically sound system 
of control, there are weaknesses, which may put the system objectives at risk.  We 
have made one Priority 2 recommendation, which relates to the Council ensuring: 

 appeals are processed on a timely basis and that a regular management check 
is performed to monitor the appeals process. 

We have also made one Priority 3 recommendation, which concerns the Council 
ensuring: 

 where further information is required from a claimant, a letter requesting the 
information is issued, giving at least one calendar month from the date the 
claim form was received to provide the missing information. 

Internal Audit reviewed the four agreed recommendations made in Audit Report 19-
02, dated February 2020.  Three recommendations have been implemented, and one 
recommendation remains outstanding which concerns the Council ensuring: 

Key Points 

Substantial Assurance 

 

One important issue 

 

One minor issue 

 

Three previous 

recommendations 

 

Page 155

Agenda Item 16
Appendix 1



Barrow Borough Council             Final Report Number 22-02 
     

 September 2022 

Page 2 

 that claims for housing benefit to be backdated are awarded for the correct 
period. 

Internal Audit also reviewed the two outstanding recommendations made in Audit 
Report 18-02, dated May 2019.  The recommendations remain outstanding and relate 
to the Council ensuring: 

 for all new claims, copies of original documentation submitted to support a 
claim for housing benefit are stamped ‘original seen’ and the stamp is initialled 
and dated; and 

 that for each new claim benefit entitlement is determined on a timely basis 
(within 14 days of all information being received) and payment is made 
promptly. 

 

Management Response 

We have received a constructive management response from the Revenues and 
Benefits Manager, accepting each of the recommendations. 
 
 

Acknowledgement 

Internal Audit would like to thank staff for their co-operation and assistance during the 
review. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Page 156

Agenda Item 16
Appendix 1



PART ONE 

Barrow Borough Council  

Audit and Governance Committee 

Thursday, 20 October 2022 

Internal Audit Progress Report  

 
 

Report from:   Director of Resources  

Report Author:  Director of Resources  

Wards:    (All Wards); 

 

1.0      Summary and Conclusions  

1.1  Internal Audit performs audits in accordance with the approved Annual Plan 

which is based on a risk assessment of the internal control environment. 

 

1.2  The progress report for the period 1 April 2022 to 7 October 2022 is presented in 

this report. 

 

2.0  Recommendation  

2.1 It is recommended that the Audit and Governance Committee note the 

Internal Audit progress report. 

 

3.0 Background and Proposals  

3.1  This report presents the Internal Audit progress report for the period 1 April 2022 

to 7 October 2022. 

 

3.2 There are seven draft contract audits in issue and auditees shall be advised that 

these are expected to be completed for presentation at the December Audit and 

Governance Committee meeting. 

 

3.3 There are four other audit reports issued in draft and again, those shall be 

finalised for presentation at the December meeting. 

 

3.4 The Director of Resources is now copied into all draft reports being issued to 

ensure timely management responses are provided. 

 

3.5 Internal Audit hold a database of all recommendations - added as reports are 

issued.  The recommendations remain on the list until an area is reviewed again; 

recommendations may be completed, overtaken by events, or outstanding. 

Page 157

Agenda Item 17



 

3.6 Management are considering an appropriate method of monitoring the 

implementation of high priority recommendations ahead of the cyclical Internal 

Audit review. 

 

4.0  Consultation  

 

4.1  The Internal Audit annual plan is agreed by the Audit and Governance 

Committee.  

 

5.0  Alternative Options  

 

5.1  There are no alternative options as the report is presented for noting.  

 

6.0  Contribution to Council Plan Priorities  

 

6.1  In order to be able to deliver Council Plan Priorities the organisation must be 

sound in terms of internal control and governance and the Audit and Governance 

Committee is charged with that role.  

 

7.0  Implications  

Financial, Resources and Procurement  

 

7.1  There are no financial, resource or procurement implications arising from this 

report.  

 

Legal  

7.2  There are no legal implications arising from this report.  

 

Equality and Diversity  

7.3 This report is for information.  

 

Local Government Reorganisation  

7.4  There are no implications in regard to Local Government Reorganisation.  

 

Risk  

Risk Consequence Controls required 

Internal controls are 

inadequate. 

Compliance cannot be 

demonstrated and 

assurance cannot be 

given. 

Internal Audit annual plan. 

 

Contact Officers 

Director of Resources directorsadmin@barrowbc.gov.uk   

Page 158

Agenda Item 17

mailto:directorsadmin@barrowbc.gov.uk


 

Appendices Attached to this Report 

Appendix No.  Name of Appendix  

1  Internal Audit Progress Report 

  

 

Page 159

Agenda Item 17



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 

 

BARROW BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 

INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT 

 

April  to October 2022 

 

2022/23 

 

 

 

Page 161

Agenda Item 17
Appendix 1



 

2 

CONTENTS Page 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 3 

1. STATISTICAL SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS 4 

2. ACCEPTED PRIORITY 1 RECOMMENDATIONS 5 

3. REJECTED RECOMMENDATIONS 6 

4. INTERNAL AUDIT COVERAGE: 7 

5. CONTRACT AUDIT 9 

6. CLASSIFICATIONS 10 

7.    PERFORMANCE 11 

8.    DRAFT REPORTS ISSUED 11 

APPENDIX 1 – RESTRICTED ASSURANCE AUDITS 12 

APPENDIX 2 - NO ASSURANCE AUDITS 13  

 

 

 

Page 162

Agenda Item 17
Appendix 1



 

3 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 

Purpose 

The purpose of the report is to update Members of the Council’s Audit and 
Governance Committee on: 

 Internal Audit work performed up to 7th October 2022, including final reports issued 
relating to a previous reporting period; and 

 Significant issues that have arisen during this period as a result of our work. 

 
 

Content 

The information is presented in the following schedules: 

1. A Statistical Summary of Recommendations 

 This schedule includes all audit recommendations to which Council 
management have responded between 1st April 2022 and 7th October 2022.  
The figures are analysed according to the ‘priority’ of the recommendations, 
and the extent to which each has been accepted by management for action. 

2. Accepted Priority 1 Recommendations 

 This schedule provides details of all major recommendations which have been 
accepted by management. 

3. Rejected Recommendations 

 This schedule provides details of major and significant (i.e. Priority 1 and 
Priority 2) recommendations, which have been rejected by Council 
Management. 

4. Audit Coverage 

 Details of audit assignments carried out in the period, including any checks on 
external partner organisations. 

5. Classifications of Assurance and Recommendations 

 An explanation of the classifications used for prioritising recommendations and 
assessing levels of assurance. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 163

Agenda Item 17
Appendix 1



 

4 

1. STATISTICAL SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS 

The following table summarises the number of audit recommendations we have made 
in our final reports issued up to 7th October; analysed by their priority, including 
whether accepted by management. 

 

Recommendations Total Priority 1 Priority 2 Priority 3 

Made 74 28 41 5 

Fully Accepted 64 23 36 5 

Partly Accepted 10 5 5 - 

Not Accepted 0 - - - 

 

 

 

 

Page 164

Agenda Item 17
Appendix 1



 

5 

2. ACCEPTED PRIORITY 1 RECOMMENDATIONS 

There have been no Priority One recommendations made since the previous Audit 
and GovernanceCommittee. 

 

 

Page 165

Agenda Item 17
Appendix 1



 

6 

3. REJECTED RECOMMENDATIONS  

 

3.1 PRIORITY ONE RECOMMENDATIONS 

 

There have been no rejected Priority One recommendations during the reporting 
period. 

 

3.2 PRIORITY TWO RECOMMENDATIONS 

 

There have been no rejected Priority Two recommendations during the reporting 
period. 

 

 

Page 166

Agenda Item 17
Appendix 1



 

7 

4. INTERNAL AUDIT COVERAGE: 

APRIL – OCTOBER 2022 

Report 

Number 
Audit Assignment 

System 

Significance 

Band 

Status Assurance 

 ANNUAL AUDITS    

22-01 Income Collection 1 Ongoing  

22-02 Housing Benefits 1 Final Substantial 

22-03 
Council Tax & Council Tax 
Support 

1   

22-04 Business Rates (NNDR) 1   

22-05 Risk Management 1 On going  

22-07 Fraud and Corruption Survey 2   

22-08 Performance Management 2 Final Restricted 

22-09 Budgetary Control 2   

22-10 Treasury Management 2   

22-11 Car Park Meter Income 2 Commenced  

22-12 Payroll (incl Expenses) 2 Commenced  

22-13 Accounts Receivable 2   

22-14 Corporate Control/Governance 2 On going  

22-15 
Main Accounting System and 
Periodic Controls 

2 Q1 complete  

22-16 Procurement (inc. Ordering) 2   

22-17 Accounts Payable 2   

22-18 
Standing Orders/ Financial 
Regs/Council Plans & Policies 

2   

22-19 NFI responsibilities - On going  

22-21 Pulse Soccer Review - On going  

22-22 Benefit Certification - On going  

     

 
COMMUNITY ORGANISATIONS 

AND MAYOR’S ACCOUNT 
   

- Hawcoat -   

- Abbotsvale -   

- Dalton - In progress  

Page 167

Agenda Item 17
Appendix 1



 

8 

Report 

Number 
Audit Assignment 

System 

Significance 

Band 

Status Assurance 

     

 IT ENVIRONMENT AUDITS    

 Implementation Review    

     

22-06 IMPLEMENTATION REVIEW    

     

     

     

 

Fraud Hotline Calls 

 Revenues/ 

Benefit related 
Staff Related Other Total 

2022/23 

(April – 
October) 

20 0 16 36 

2021/22 

(Full year) 
14 0 46 60 

 

 

Page 168

Agenda Item 17
Appendix 1



 

9 

5. CONTRACT AUDIT 

Report 

Number 
Audit Assignment Status 

Assurance/ 

Comment 

CR119 Crematorium  - New Cremators Draft Restricted  

CR123 Harding Rise Draft Restricted 

CR132 
Portland Walk Car Park 
Maintenance 

Draft Restricted 

CR134 
Cleaning and Key holding of 
Public Conveniences, Stairwells 
and Bus Stops 2020-22 

Draft  No Assurance 

CR135 Future High Street Consultancy Draft No Assurance 

CR139 Electrical Reactive Maintenance Draft Restricted 

CR140 
Heating, Ventilation & Air 
Conditioning Servicing & 
Maintenance 

Draft Restricted 

CR120 
Cleaning of Barrow Town Hall 
and Associated Buildings 2021-
23 

Final No Assurance 

CR133 Insurance Final Restricted  

CR136 Forum catering & cleaning  Final No Assurance 

CR141 Housing – Staircase Cleaning Final Restricted 

    

 

 

Page 169

Agenda Item 17
Appendix 1



 

10 

6. CLASSIFICATIONS 

6.1   Classification of Assurance Levels 

At the conclusion of each audit, we give an overall opinion on the level of assurance, 
which we consider is provided by the controls in place within the system audited.  The 
following classification of assurance levels has been adopted: 
 

Level Definition 

1. Unqualified Assurance The controls appear to be consistently applied. 

2. Substantial Assurance Evidence was identified to suggest that the 
level of non-compliance with controls may put 
some of the system objectives at risk. 

3. Restricted Assurance The level of non-compliance identified places 
the system objectives at risk. 

4. None Significant non-compliance with controls was 
identified leaving the system vulnerable to 
error and abuse. 

 

 

 

6.2 Priority of Recommendations 

Our audit recommendations are categorised by three priority levels: - 

Priority 1 Major issues that we consider need to be brought to the attention of senior 
management. 

Priority 2 Important issues which should be addressed by management in their area 
of responsibility. 

Priority 3 Detailed issues of a relatively minor nature. 

 

 

 

Page 170

Agenda Item 17
Appendix 1



 

   

 

11 

7. PERFORMANCE 

The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAs) require Internal Audit to be 
measured in terms of performance.  The indicators below provide information over the 
arrangements and effectiveness of Internal Audit. 

Indicator 2022/23 

1 Percentage of Draft reports issued within 10 working days 
of completion of audit fieldwork. 

100% 

2 Percentage of Management Responses received within 
20 working days of issue of the Draft report. 33% 

3 Percentage of Final reports issued within 10 working days 
of receipt of management response. 100% 

4 Percentage of Priority 1 and Priority 2 Recommendations 
acceptable to the audit client. 100% 

 

8. Draft Reports issued 

Ref Audit Date issued 

21-06 Cash Floats and Receipting Controls 29 March 2022 

21-16 Main Accounting System and Periodic Controls 13 July 2022 

CR123 Harding Rise 26 July 2022 

CR134 
Cleaning and Key holding of Public Conveniences, 
Stairwells and Bus Stops 2020-22 

26 July 2022 

21.01 Income Collection 8 August 2022 

21-10 Budgetary Control 9 August 2022 

CR119 Crematorium - New Cremators 11 August 2022 

CR132 Portland Walk Car Park Maintenance 11 August 2022 

CR139 Electrical Reactive Maintenance 1 September 2022 

CR140 
Heating, Ventilation & Air Conditioning Servicing & 
Maintenance 

1 September 2022 

CR135 Future High Street Consultancy 
21 September 
2022 

 

Page 171

Agenda Item 17
Appendix 1



 

   

 

12 

 

APPENDIX 1 – RESTRICTED ASSURANCE AUDITS 

 

 
Recommendations Previous 

Recommendations Total Date Issued 

Ref Audit P1 P2 P3 P1 P2 P3 

CR141 Housing 2019-23 Staircase Cleaning  3 4     7 15 March 2022 

20-25 
Covid Risk Assessment Post Assurance 
Review 

2 8 1    11 24 March 2022 

CR133 Insurance  2 5     7 18 July 2022 

21-09 Performance Management 5 4     9 18 July 2022 

 

  

P
age 172

A
genda Item

 17
A

ppendix 1



 

   

 

13 

APPENDIX 2 – NO ASSURANCE AUDITS 

 

 
Recommendations Previous 

Recommendations Total Date Issued 

Ref Audit P1 P2 P3 P1 P2 P3 

21-17 Procurement  3 3  4 1  11 13 July 2022 

CR136 
Catering and Cleaning at the Forum and Dock 
Museum 2021-26 

6 4     10 15 July 2022 

CR120 
Cleaning of Barrow Town Hall and Associated 
Buildings 2021-23 

7 5     12 19 July 2022 

 

P
age 173

A
genda Item

 17
A

ppendix 1



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	6 Minutes
	8 Annual Audit and Statutory Recommendation Reports
	Enc. 1 for Annual Audit and Statutory Recommendation Reports
	Enc. 2 for Annual Audit and Statutory Recommendation Reports

	9 Audit and Governance Improvement Plan and Draft Annual Governance Statement
	appendix 1 combined improvement plan
	Enc. 1 for Draft Annual Governance Statement

	10 Work Plan 2022-2023
	Enc. 1 for Work Plan 2022-2023

	11 Borough and Parish/Town Councillor Registers of DIsclosable Pecuniary Interests and Other Registrable Interests
	12 Employee Register of Gifts and Hospitality
	13 Report on Compliments, Customer Feedback and Complaints received during 2021/22
	Complaints Annual Report Final
	COMPLIMENTS

	14 Local Government Ombudsman Annual Report 2021/22
	Barrow-in-Furness Borough Council
	Barrow-in-Furness Borough Council - Complaints recieved

	15 Risk Management
	Enc. 1 for Risk Management

	16 Internal Audit Final Report
	Enc. 1 for Internal Audit Final Report

	17 Internal Audit Progress Report
	Enc. 1 for Internal Audit Progress Report


